

# **EVALUATING THE ADOPTION OF GAMIFIED RECOMMENDER SYSTEMS USING MULTI CRITERIA DECISION APPROACH**

**MASTER THESIS** 

AGYEMAN MURAD TAQI

Nicosia June, 2024

AGYEMAN MURAD TAQI EVALUATING THE ADOPTION OF GRS USING MCDM APPROACH

Nicosia June, 2024

# NEAR EAST UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE OF GRADUATE STUDIES DEPARTMENT OF COMPUTER INFORMATION SYSTEMS

# EVALUATING THE ADOPTION OF GAMIFIED RECOMMENDER SYSTEMS USING MULTI CRITERIA DECISION APPROACH

**MASTER THESIS** 

AGYEMAN MURAD TAQI

Supervisor

ASSOC. PROF. Dr. SEREN BASARAN

Nicosia June, 2024

## Approval

We certify that we have read the thesis submitted by Agyeman Murad Taqi titled "EVALUATING THE ADOPTION OF GAMIFIED RECOMMENDER SYSTEMS USING MULTI CRITERIA DECISION APPROACH" and that in our combined opinion it is fully adequate, in scope and in quality, as a thesis for the degree of Master of Science in Computer Information Systems.

| <b>Examining Committee</b> | Name-Surname                   | Signature |
|----------------------------|--------------------------------|-----------|
| Head of the Committee      | PROF. DR. RAHIB ABIYEV         | Heref     |
| Committee Member           | PROF. DR. FEZİLE ÖZDAMLI       | Muu       |
| Supervisor                 | ASSOC. PROF. DR. SEREN BAŞARAN | .J.3      |

Approved by the Head of the Department

05.107/2024

į

PROF. DR. NADİRE ÇAVUŞ Head of Department

Approved by the Institute of Graduate Studies

1.1.1.7.12024



ii Head of the Institute

#### Declaration

I hereby declare that all information, documents, analysis and results in this thesis have been collected and presented according to the academic rules and ethical guidelines of Institute of Graduate Studies, Near East University. I also declare that as required by these rules and conduct, I have fully cited and referenced information and data that are not original to this study.

> Agyeman Murad Taqi 01/06/2024

#### Acknowledgments

I wish to acknowledge the contribution of the following people towards my achievement:

My supervisor, Assoc. Prof. Dr. Seren Başaran, has my sincere gratitude for her help, encouragement, counsel, and oversight in making this research a success.

My departmental head, Prof. Dr. Nadire Cavus; your confidence in me, your support to ensure I make the best of myself I wholeheartedly acknowledge. Thank you.

My profound gratitude to my wonderful parents Medsta and Eugenia Taqi for their love, support, encouragement, and financial assistance throughout. I couldn't have accomplished this without you. I am forever grateful. May God bless and keep you.

My siblings, my precious Uncles and Aunties who sacrificed so much to lend a hand, I humbly bow!

My friends and course mates, thank you for being there. You're much appreciated. Finally, I would like to express my gratitude to Near East University's Faculty of Computer Information Systems for their numerous contributions throughout the program and for the lessons I was able to learn while undergoing training at this outstanding faculty. I am grateful.

Agyeman Murad Taqi

#### Abstract

# EVALUATING THE ADOPTION OF GAMIFIED RECOMMENDER SYSTEMS USING MULTI CRITERIA DECISION APPROACH Agyeman Murad Taqi M. Sc, Department of Computer Information Systems June, 2024, (88) pages

This study evaluates the adoption of gamified recommender systems using a fuzzy logic-enhanced multi-criteria decision-making (MCDM) approach to optimize user engagement and satisfaction. Four gamified designs were assessed against criteria including effectiveness, transparency, persuasiveness, user satisfaction, trust, usefulness, ease of use, efficiency, and education. Twenty-five decision makers provided evaluations, which were used to create preliminary fuzzy evaluation matrices. The Fuzzy Dematel method, normalized and aggregated these matrices, and the centroid approach was employed in the defuzzification process to convert fuzzy data into crisp scores. The analysis revealed that "Usefulness" and "Ease of Use" are critical factors significantly influencing user satisfaction and system effectiveness. Each design presented unique benefits for users, demonstrating various approaches to enhancing user experience through gamification. The findings highlights the importance of integrating user-centred criteria in the design of gamified recommender systems. This approach therefore ensures that user needs, and expectations are met, thereby improving overall user engagement and satisfaction. The study concludes that fuzzy logic combined with MCDM provides a strong framework for evaluating and optimizing gamified recommender systems. The results suggest that focusing on key user-centred criteria can significantly boost the effectiveness and user satisfaction of these systems. This approach offers new perspectives on improving user engagement and satisfaction in digital environments by modifying system design to user requirements and expectations.

*Key Words:* Fuzzy Logic, Multi-Criteria Decision-Making (MCDM), Gamified Recommender System, User Engagement, User Satisfaction, System Effectivenes

## ÇOK KRİTERLİ KARAR YAKLAŞIMI KULLANILARAK OYUNLAŞTIRILMIŞ ÖNERİ SİSTEMLERİNİN UYGULANMASININ DEĞERLENDİRİLMESİ Yüksek Lisans, Bilgisayar Bilişim Sistemleri Bölümü Haziran, 2024, (88) sayfa

Bu çalışma, kullanıcı katılımını ve memnuniyetini optimize etmek için bulanık mantıkla geliştirilmiş çok kriterli karar verme (MCDM) yaklaşımını kullanan oyunlaştırılmış öneri sistemlerinin benimsenmesini değerlendirmektedir. Dört oyunlaştırılmış tasarım; etkililik, şeffaflık, ikna edicilik, kullanıcı memnuniyeti, güven, kullanışlılık, kullanım kolaylığı, verimlilik ve eğitim gibi kriterlere göre değerlendirildi. Yirmi beş karar verici, ön bulanık değerlendirme matrislerini oluşturmak için kullanılan değerlendirmeler sağladı. Bu matrisleri normalize eden ve bir araya getiren Bulanık Dematel yöntemi ve durulaştırma sürecinde bulanık verileri net puanlara dönüştürmek için centroid yaklaşımı kullanıldı. Analiz, "Kullanışlılık" ve "Kullanım Kolaylığı"nın kullanıcı memnuniyetini ve sistem etkinliğini önemli ölçüde etkileyen kritik faktörler olduğunu ortaya çıkardı. Her tasarım, oyunlaştırma yoluyla kullanıcı deneyimini geliştirmeye yönelik çeşitli yaklaşımları sergileyerek kullanıcılara benzersiz faydalar sundu. Bulgular, kullanıcı merkezli kriterlerin oyunlaştırılmış öneri sistemlerinin tasarımına entegre edilmesinin önemini vurgulamaktadır. Dolayısıyla bu yaklaşım, kullanıcı ihtiyaçlarının ve beklentilerinin karşılanmasını sağlayarak genel kullanıcı katılımını ve memnuniyetini artırır. Çalışma, bulanık mantığın MCDM ile bir arava getirilmesinin, oyunlastırılmış öneri sistemlerinin değerlendirilmesi ve optimize edilmesi için güçlü bir çerçeve sağladığı sonucuna varmaktadır. Sonuçlar, temel kullanıcı merkezli kriterlere odaklanmanın, bu sistemlerin etkinliğini ve kullanıcı memnuniyetini önemli ölçüde artırabileceğini göstermektedir. Bu yaklaşım, sistem tasarımını kullanıcı gereksinimlerine ve beklentilerine göre değiştirerek dijital ortamlarda kullanıcı katılımını ve memnuniyetini artırmaya yönelik yeni bakış açıları sunar.

*Anahtar sözcükler*:Bulanık Mantık, Çok Kriterli Karar Verme (MCDM), Oyunlaştırılmış Öneri Sistemi, Kullanıcı Katılımı, Kullanıcı Memnuniyeti, Sistem Etkinliği

# **Table of Contents**

| Approval              | i   |
|-----------------------|-----|
| Declaration           | ii  |
| Acknowledgments       | iii |
| Abstract              | iv  |
| Ozet                  | v   |
| List of Tables        | ix  |
| List of Figures       | X   |
| List of Abbreviations | xi  |

# **CHAPTER I**

| INTRODUCTION              |    |
|---------------------------|----|
| Background                | 11 |
| Purpose of the Study      |    |
| Statement of the Problem  | 14 |
| Significance of the Study | 14 |

# CHAPTER II

| LITERATURE REVIEW                     |    |  |
|---------------------------------------|----|--|
| MCDM (Multi Criteria Decision Making) |    |  |
| Decision Support System               | 17 |  |
| Gamified Recommendation Systems       | 18 |  |
| The Fuzzy DEMATEL                     |    |  |
| Theoretical Framework                 | 20 |  |

# **CHAPTER III**

| METHODOLOGY     |  |
|-----------------|--|
| Research Design |  |
| Participants    |  |
| Data Collection |  |
| Data Analysis   |  |
|                 |  |

# CHAPTER IV

| RESULTS |   |    |
|---------|---|----|
|         | Fuzzy DEMATEL Process                             | 31 |
|         | Evaluation Of Gamified Recommender System Designs | 38 |

| DISCUSSION                                     |
|--|
| Key Criteria Insights65                        |
| Design-wise Insights67                         |
| Comparative Analysis                           |
| Limitations                                    |
| CHAPTER VI                                     |
| CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS                 |
| Conclusion71                                   |
| Recommendations71                              |
| Recommendations for Future Research72          |
| REFERENCES                                     |
| APPENDICES                                     |
| Appendix A: Ethical Committee Approval80       |
| Appendix B: The Turnitin Report81              |
| Appendix C: Gamified Recommender System Survey |

# **CHAPTER V**

# List of Tables

| Table 1: Fuzzy Scale   | 32        |
|--|-----------|
| <b>Table 2</b> : Sample Evaluation Matrix                                  | 34        |
| Table 3: The direct relation matrix- Design 1                              |           |
| <b>Table 4:</b> The normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix-Design 1       | 40        |
| Table 5: The fuzzy total-relation matrix- Design 1                         | 41        |
| Table 6: The crisp total-relation matrix- Design 1                         |           |
| Table 7: The crisp total- relationships matrix by considering the thresho  | ld value- |
| Design 1   |           |
| Table 8: The final output – Design 1                                       | 43        |
| <b>Table 9:</b> The direct relation matrix- Design 2                       |           |
| Table 10: The normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix-Design 2             |           |
| Table 11: The fuzzy total-relation matrix- Design 2                        | 47        |
| <b>Table 12:</b> The crisp total-relation matrix- Design 2                 |           |
| Table 13: The crisp total- relationships matrix by considering the thresho | ld value- |
| Design 2   | 49        |
| Table 14: The final output – Design 2                                      | 49        |
| Table 15: The direct relation matrix- Design 3                             |           |
| Table 16: The normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix-Design 3             | 53        |
| Table 17: The fuzzy total-relation matrix- Design 3                        | 54        |
| Table 18: The crisp total-relation matrix- Design 3                        |           |
| Table 19: The crisp total- relationships matrix by considering the thresho | ld value- |
| Design 3   | 55        |
| Table 20: The final output – Design 3                                      | 56        |
| Table 21: The direct relation matrix- Design 4                             |           |
| Table 22: The normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix-Design 4             |           |
| Table 23: The fuzzy total-relation matrix- Design 4                        | 60        |
| Table 24: The crisp total-relation matrix- Design 4                        | 61        |
| Table 25: The crisp total- relationships matrix by considering the thresho | ld value- |
| Design 4   | 61        |
| Table 26: The final output – Design 4                                      | 62        |

# **List of Figures**

| Figure 1: Gender Distribution                   | 27 |
|---|----|
| Figure 2: Field of Study Distribution           | 27 |
| Figure 3: Recommender System Usage Distribution | 28 |
| Figure 4: Recommender Systems Used Distribution | 28 |
| Figure 5: Gant Chart of Study Procedure         | 29 |
| Figure 6: Flow Diagram of Study Procedure       | 30 |
| Figure 7: Fuzzy DEMATEL Flow Diagram            | 31 |
| Figure 8: Cause-effect diagram- Design 1        | 63 |
| Figure 9: Cause-effect diagram- Design 2        | 63 |
| Figure 10: Cause-effect diagram- Design 3       | 64 |
| Figure 11: Cause-effect diagram- Design 4       | 64 |

# List of Abbreviations

**CIS:** Computer Information Systems.

**GRS:** Gamified Recommender Systems

MCDM: Multi Criteria Decision Making

**DM:** Decision Maker

MADM: Multi-Attribute Decision Making

MODM: Multi-Objective Decision Making

PBL: Points, Acknowledgments, and Competition

AOP: Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Progression

AOS: Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Social Pressure

ACT: Acknowledgments, Competition, and Time Pressure

## **CHAPTER I**

## **INTRODUCTION**

#### 1.1 Background

Decision making is affected by many factors whether social, biological, physiological or cultural. Therefore, making decision has been and continues to be a major activity for the ordinary human (Taherdoost & Madanchian, 2023). Most decision-making problems have contradictory criteria and objectives which have to be considered simultaneously. An effective and systematic evaluation of choices and solutions requires a reliable and dependable decision-making system (Yannis et al., 2020) . Decisions to a very large extent are determined by constraints which are mostly unknown and events over which there is no control (Başhan et al., 2019). In the exact sciences, there are usually only one solution to a problem. In the decision-making process, several advantages and disadvantages are considered, which means there would be some amount of compromise and exchange leading to the availability of several different options (Jahan & Edwards, 2013).

Decision makers would therefore need help with the decision-making process. Help came in the form of Decision Support Systems (DSS) which collects, organizes and analyses data from which appropriate actions can be taken (Macias-Escobar et al., 2021). The DSS is computer based and can be applied in different decision-making processes. Amongst the DSS applications is the Knowledgedriven DSS which uses available data to make suggestions and recommendations. Recommender systems fall within this category of assisting users in decision making (Alahmadi & Jamjoom, 2022).

Recommender systems, also known as recommendation systems, are designed to filter information and provide personalized suggestions for items that may interest users (Raftopoulou & Pallis, 2023). Acting as filters, recommendation systems practically reduce information overload (Roy & Dutta, 2022). Recommendation systems use various algorithms like content-based filtering, collaborative filtering, and hybrid methods to predict user preferences (Milano et al.,2020). Content-

based systems rely on past user interactions, while collaborative filtering uses the preferences of similar users. Hybrid systems combine both approaches to enhance accuracy and personalization (Pathak et al., 2010). Both content-based and collaborative filtering have limitations which Hybrid, being a combination of the two also inherits. Given a more expansive knowledge base and with the ability to overcome their limitations, Knowledge based recommendation system provides better recommendations. Modern systems however integrate both knowledge based and hybrid to get rid of the limitations, thereby increasing levels of accuracy. In application, an effective recommendation system needs continuous feedback for optimized results. This can only be achieved if the user is confident that the system is providing accurate results. With continuous interaction, the user provides additional data from which the algorithms learn and revise their predictions. The user's involvement is paramount. If there is no cooperation from the user, then the user has to be motivated to get involved (Nunes & Jannach, 2017).

Gamification can potentially provide the motivation that users require because it has the capacity to cause behavioral change and enhance user motivation and engagement (Alsawaier, 2018). It motivates in multiple ways depending largely on the context. (Dichev & Dicheva, 2017). Gamification is regarded as a powerful tool as it actually generates an experience and responses from gamification depends largely on the characteristics of the users. Using game design elements, gamification can positively influence user motivation; stimulating the brain such that the rewards encourage the user to maintain engagement; promoting behavioral change in a broad range of domains including health and fitness, education, training, customer loyalty, marketing, and staff management (Tondello et al., 2017).

In gamification therefore, it is best to choose game design elements that have the potential to incentivize the user, to push the user towards the desired objective. The goal is to drive user engagement and the designs must continually encourage the user to maintain engagement at their will. The Game designs must be tailored to fit the user's needs and expectations to ensure the user continue to interact with the gamified environment. Users can only continue to maintain the environment if they are satisfied with the experience. The experience is personal and that is why

it is critical to achieve engagement, performance, improved attendance and proactiveness. Having determined the desired goal and what can potentially move the set of users, the design must ensure that the users enjoy the process (Triantafyllou & Georgiadis, 2022). The game elements must fit the user's profile, taking into consideration what challenges the user, the user's social connections, the status of the user, possible rewards and progression elements (Marache-Francisco and Brangier, 2013). It is worthy to note that the effectiveness of the design is not only based on the number of game elements but on its effects. In some designs, the correlation of the elements might not even yield a positive outcome (Huang & Hew, 2021).

There is much emphasis on the user's preferences as studies have shown that users differ considerably, and different gamified designs lead to different user experiences (Santos et al., 2021). Moreover, for a design to be acceptable; effectiveness, efficiency and satisfaction are key attributes. These ensure that identified users can achieve required goals in specific environments. Usability and usefulness are absolutely necessary. Persuasiveness, Percieved use and ease of use also gain recognition in achieving user acceptance (Marache-Francisco and Brangier, 2013). Trust another attribute, depends heavily on transparency and usability. Trust comes through after positive user experiences (Bhaskaran, 2024)

#### **1.2 Purpose of the Study**

The hypothesis for this study is that users react to different designs differently. In the absence of reliable data on user experience, this study has identified four hypothetical gamified recommender system designs which were presented to students for evaluation.

The study aims to investigate whether the identified gamified designs for recommender systems in language learning impact the cause-effect relationships among attributes like effectiveness, transparency, persuasiveness, user satisfaction, trust, usefulness, ease of use, efficiency, and learnability. A systematic literature review was conducted to identify these attributes.

Responses from the students display their reactions to the different designs, thereby providing user feedback. For efficiency and accuracy, their responses or feedback is evaluated using the FUZZY DEMATEL method. The FUZZY DEMATEL method, a multi-criteria decision-making (MCDM) approach, is used to evaluate the gamified recommender systems. This method accounts for inconsistencies and inaccuracies, providing a systematic evaluation of various system designs. The cause-effect relationships among the variables for each design were then compared to identify any discrepancies and provide insights into improving personalized experiences and enhancing behavior change within gamified applications.

#### **1.3 Statement of the Problem**

Recommender systems and gamification are relatively new concepts which research has established can improve user experience (Santos et al., 2021). Integrating gamification into recommender systems, referred to as gamified recommender systems, can provide the necessary motivation for users to engage with the system, thereby improving the accuracy of recommendations (Saleem et al., 2022). This integration involves using game elements such as points, badges, and leaderboards to keep users engaged (De et al., 2014). A blend of the two concepts has however not received much feedback since the concept has only quite recently been incorporated in the world of recommender systems. In order to determine the effectiveness and efficiency of the integration, accurate feedback is required (Lerato et al., 2015). Empirical evidence of user experience is key (Knijnenburg et al., 2012) . Feedback detailing user reactions determines the acceptance or adoption of gamified recommender systems. These reactions have a strong influence on the effectiveness and accuracy of evaluation, and consequent adoption of the system (Champiri et al., 2019). Deriving data to support user experience given the novelty of the integration becomes challenging. Moreover, evaluating and adoption becomes a bigger challenge in the light of the subjective nature of human preferences and the need for reliable decision-making tools (Jannach, 2023).

Gamified recommender systems have not received much feedback since the concept has only quite recently been incorporated in the world of recommender systems. Consequently, evaluation of user experience in the absence of studies of different gamified recommender designs is a challenge. Feedback detailing user reactions determines the acceptance or adoption of gamified recommender systems. Evaluating becomes a bigger challenge in the light of the subjective nature of human preferences and MCDM is proposed to provide the platform for a comparison of different systems across multiple dimensions.

## **CHAPTER II**

## LITERATURE REVIEW

The literature review explores the fundamental ideas and theories that form the basis of the research study "Evaluating the Adoption of Gamified Recommender Systems Using a Multi-Criteria Decision Approach." The theoretical framework and relevant research in gamified recommender system designs and multi-criteria decision-making (MCDM) are examined in this chapter. Through the integration of various domains, this study seeks to offer a thorough understanding of the ways in which gamified aspects can improve recommender systems and the efficient ways in which MCDM techniques can assess their performance and adoption. This chapter presents the evaluation criteria for gamified recommender systems, identifies important themes, and conducts a methodical review of previous studies. Establishing a solid methodological approach and obtaining significant insights from the research findings are reliant upon this foundation. Also, Complexities exist in the decision-making process, and it is imperative that groundwork be laid for the right techniques and solutions to achieve desired outcomes. Choices have to be made to achieve best results. Decision support system (DSS), and Multiple Criteria Decision Making (MCDM), work together to achieve best results through the Gamified recommendation system (GRS). MCDM considers multiple criteria in recommendations whilst ranking the effectiveness of recommendation algorithms in meeting identified criteria; DSS provides a wide decision support base, puts information together and outlines the problem. DSS can use RS to determine preferences of the decision maker (Liu et al, 2010; Sahoo & Goswami, 2023).

#### 2.1 MCDM (Multi Criteria Decision Making)

Multiple criteria Decision Analysis (MCDA), also referred to as MCDM, is a sub-discipline of Operations Research with the capacity for optimal

decision-making. Qualified with major significance within the Operational research system, MCDM has the capacity to evaluate multiple quantitative and qualitative criteria. MCDM's research area encompasses various disciplines for proper analysis, which gives MCDM the edge as a decision-making tool (Yannis et al., 2020). MCDM generally has six steps; the first step determines the problem; the second identifies the requirements; the third establishes targets; the fourth identifies the different options; the fifth develops the criteria; and the sixth identifies and applies the decision-making technique. The process compares a chosen criterion against all other available option to ensure that the decision maker selects an option with maximum advantage, and minimum compromise. This process involves the use of mathematical techniques and the nature and level of complexity of the problem determines the choice of technique.

The MCDM becomes very important as it designs the gamified recommender system. Issues like goals, engagement of the decision maker, and recommendation accuracy are considered.

#### 2.2 Decision Support System

Decision support system (DSS) collects, organizes and analyses data and enables the decision maker to have access to this data from which appropriate actions can be taken. The decision maker can investigate into available data, analyse the data, from which assessments can be made to help with decision making (Macias-Escobar et al., 2021).

DSS was put together to support decision makers at every level whether as support within operations, optimization, financial management and as far as simulation (Liu et al, 2010). Both DSS and RS rely heavily on data. In the quest for supporting decision making, RS whose role is to recommend or make suggestions, can be absorbed into the DSS for effective decision making. The DSS puts together data required for proper analysis, ensuring that all data relating to achieving the desired goal of the gamified recommender system is met.

#### 2.3 Gamified Recommendation Systems

Recommender systems and gamification are relatively new concepts which research has established can improve user experience (Santos et al., 2021). Recommender systems are designed such that they provide personalized recommendations or suggestions to decision makers or users depending on their preferences. When game like elements are used in real-world context, gamification ensues. Gamification makes tasks more enjoyable, motivating users. When gamification is infused into recommendation systems, Gamification recommendation system is produced.

The decision support delivered by DSS and MCDM, provides the elements, the mixture of which designs can be implemented.

The backbone of gamified recommender systems in effect is the game design elements which help users to perform; achieve elasticity and value. For the system to be successful, users should be aware that the context of instruction, the boundaries allocated, need to be considered and not just the application of game elements.

Shahreez et al. (2022) formulated gamified elements as follows:

- Acknowledgement appreciation for players
- Chance Possibility of occurring
- Points award for performance
- Objectives Guide for action
- Competition Strive towards a common goal
- Social Pressure Peer pressure interaction
- Time Pressure Pushing factor through time
- Cooperation Working together
- Progression Unit to measure progress

## 2.4 The Fuzzy DEMATEL

Over the years, MCDM has developed many methods and software to resolve defined problems. The choice of MCDM technique depends on the type of result anticipated. Each technique has its own calculation method and data set (Zlaugotne et al., 2020). Amongst the many MCDM techniques, the DEMATEL method is considered comprehensive and detailed. It accounts for the interdependence among the factors of a system via causal diagram, which tends to be overlooked in traditional techniques. Decision making trial and evaluation laboratory (DEMATEL) technique is quite efficient in analyzing cause and effect relationships among components of a system. In summary, the DEMATEL can:

• Endorse interdependence among factors

• Move further to develop a map that reflects the relationship between these factors

• Potentially investigate and solve complex and intertwined problems.

• Use an impact relation diagram to determine the critical factors of a complex structure system (Si et al., 2018).

Even though the DEMATEL has an edge over the other methods, it has its own limitations. Even though it can determine the ranking of alternatives based on interdependent relationships among them; other criteria are not incorporated in the decision-making problem. It also doesn't consider the relative weights of experts in aggregating personal judgments of experts into group assessments. It doesn't account for the aspiration level of alternatives (Si et al., 2018). Nevertheless, the DEMATEL model has received a lot of attention due to its advantages over the other methods and its capabilities. Researchers have successfully applied it in solving complex system problems in various areas. In order to establish a structural model, the relationships of decision factors in the DEMATEL, are assessed by crisp values. However, given that many real-world systems include imprecise and uncertain information, the DEMATEL has been extended for better decision making under different environments.

Due to the complexities that may arise from human factors, conventional quantification methods are not useful in solving people-centered problems. Human judgements tend to be unclear and exact numerical values are insufficient to estimate the vague interdependency relationships between criteria. Decision making problems need to be solved under uncertainty since constraints, actions and goals are all ambiguous. Moreover, given that judgements are often subjective, every decision involves some amount of ambiguity, vagueness and imprecision. The application of fuzzy sets, eliminates deficiencies that might be within the

crisp set theory. Hence the need for the application of fuzzy sets to the DEMATEL (Altinirmak et al, 2017).

The deficiencies in crisp set theory are represented in linguistic terms. These linguistic terms are translated to fuzzy numbers which are attached to the various judgements, opinions and experiences associated with decision makers. The crisp set is thus translated into the fuzzy set since it can better represent ambiguous data and makes allowance for the application of mathematical operations within a fuzzy environment. Within the fuzzy set, membership values are assigned to the objects. Values range from 0, which signifies non-membership to 1; which signifies complete membership. Values in between possess an intermediate degree of membership (Altinirmak et al, 2017).

#### 2.5 Theoretical Framework

This study's theoretical framework offers an organized foundation for applying a multi-criteria decision-making (MCDM) technique to analyze the adoption of gamified recommender systems. The foundation of this framework is a knowledge of how recommender systems and gamification can be combined to improve user engagement and satisfaction. The framework directs the entire research process, including the process of extracting criteria by conducting a systematic literature review.

#### 2.5.1 Gamified Recommender System Designs

Gamified recommender system designs are formed by putting together game elements which offer different approaches to engage users and drive desired behaviors within the system. Different gamified designs affect user experience differently (Santos et al., 2021). Based on this inference, a systematic literature review was conducted to extract user experience attributes related to recommender systems. Each design may be tailored to the target audience of the recommendation platform. Each design may also be put together depending on specific goals and target audience of the recommendation platform. Identified game designs as follows:

#### i) Points, Acknowledgments, and Competition (PBL):

This design uses elements such as points, acknowledgments (or achievements), and competition to motivate user engagement. Points are awarded for completing tasks or activities within the system, acknowledgments provide recognition for achievements, and competition encourages a sense of challenge and comparison among users (Hamari et al., 2014).

#### ii) Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Progression (AOP):

In this design, users are motivated by acknowledgments of their accomplishments, clear objectives to look forward to, and a sense of progression as they advance through the system. Acknowledgments can come in the form of badges, trophies, or levels attained by completing tasks or reaching milestones (Schöbel et al., 2020).

#### iii) Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Social Pressure (AOS):

This design influences users through acknowledgments, objectives, and social pressure. Social pressure can appear through features like leaderboards, which allow users to see how they rank relative to others, promoting rivalry and social affirmation of their achievements (Park & Kim, 2021).

#### iv) Acknowledgments, Competition, and Time Pressure (ACT):

Acknowledgments, competition, and time pressure are what encourage users in this design. Time-sensitive problems or activities provide a sense of demand, while competition adds a layer of motivation through the desire to surpass others within a given deadline (Huotari & Hamari, 2017).

# 2.5.2 Evaluation and Adoption of the Gamified Recommendation System Designs

The Gamified recommender system designs requires evaluation to determine its effectiveness; to ascertain whether indeed the system has the ability to recommend and why the system has made those recommendations. With reference to other studies, Deepak and Anguraj (2023) determined the efficiency of their GRS by comparing with other approaches. They used fitness assessment to determine the behaviour of the individual player through an efficient GRS. In a research done by Loukaidou, (2022) for a gamified recommender system to facilitate cognitive function in children with dementia in 2022, he determined that the benefits of Cognitive stimulation therapy was not immediately visible in adult onset dementia and therefore suggested that the model be used only for childhood dementia patients with mild to moderate dementia. He also proposed the addition of machine learning to his GRS to improve on its accuracy in terms of recommendations and further, decrease the need of domain experts. Tondello et al. (2017) present a novel general framework for personalized gameful applications using recommender systems. For efficiency, they proposed the description of the different building blocks of a recommender system in a personalized gamification context. Swacha et al, (2023) propose six points that can be used to evaluate gamified systems: The consequences of gamification were discussed in terms of its "general effects, area-specific effects, technical quality of gamified systems, use of gamified systems, gamefulness of gamified systems, and user experience of gamified systems."

Evaluating recommender system designs can be a challenge given that "the ground truth is hard to obtain, and human feelings are not easy to approximate" (Chen et al, 2022), in the face of numerous satisfactory solutions. User experience has however emerged as a very important tool to determine whether the designs are good enough to achieve an effective gamified system. If the system is not sufficiently usable, problems could occur which could affect the user (Raftopoulou & Pallis, 2023). Farzan and Brusilovsky (2011), endorse that user participation has become quite critical which is why it becomes necessary to encourage user participation. Even if other aspects of the system work perfectly, a lack of usability might lead to the user avoiding the system or even using the system improperly. Moreover, the field of usability has not been sufficiently explored which makes it difficult to get usability recommendations for gamified systems (Magylaitė et al., 2022). Information on the experience of users presents valuable insight into the workings of gamified recommendation systems.

An analysis of user experience from four gamified recommendation system designs provides basis for evaluation.

Multi Criteria Decision Making (MCDM) focuses on practical applications with great emphasis on human–technology interaction. It can systematically consider multiple metrics simultaneously. In effect, MCDM breaks down complexities and analyses the components in order to present the requirement (Mardani et al, 2015). These qualities give MCDM the edge required to effectively evaluate recommender system designs (Alshamsi et al., 2023). In order to account for any imprecision or vagueness, fuzzy sets are incorporated (Keršulienė & Turskis, 2012).

# **2.5.3** Steps Involved in the Systematic Literature Review for Extraction of Criteria

#### **Step 1: Identification of Research Topics**

The systematic literature review that was conducted started by identifying the main areas of interest: **Gamification** and **Recommender Systems**. The aim of the review was to understand how these fields put together can affect user satisfaction and engagement.

#### Step 2: Defining Key Terms and Concepts

To provide clarity and focus, key definitions were established:

- **Gamification:** Using game-based mechanisms, aesthetics, and game thinking in non-game contexts to engage people, motivate action, promote learning, and solve problems (Tondello et al., 2017).
- **Recommender Systems:** Information filtering systems that supply recommendations for items likely to be relevant to a user (Raftopoulou & Pallis, 2023).

#### **Step 3: Formulating Research Questions**

Based on the aim to investigate the quality and SWOT aspects of gamified recommender systems, three primary research questions were formulated:

- 1. What factors affect the quality of gamified, decision-support-based recommender systems?
- 2. What are these systems' strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats?
- 3. What are the user experiences in gamified recommendation systems?

## **Step 4: Designing the Search Strategy**

Using the PRISMA approach, a systematic search was conducted across four major databases (IEEE Xplore, Science Direct, Swiss Consortium, and Research Gate) for literature published between 2013 and 2023. The search keywords

included terms related to gamification, recommender systems, and decision support.

#### **Step 5: Applying Inclusion and Exclusion Criteria**

The selection criteria ensured that only relevant, high-quality studies were included:

- Inclusion: Articles in English, open access, relevant to the research topics and keywords.
- Exclusion: Non-English articles, non-open access articles, editorial materials, and book chapters.

## **Step 6: Screening and Selecting Studies**

From 823 initial records, duplicate and irrelevant papers were removed, narrowing the pool to 60 studies for full-text review. Further filtering based on language and relevance led to the final selection of 19 studies.

#### **Step 7: Data Extraction and Analysis**

Detailed data extraction from the selected studies focused on:

- Factors Affecting Quality: Customer engagement, personalization, interdisciplinary knowledge, learner engagement, interaction dynamics.
- SWOT Analysis: Strengths (e.g., boosted engagement, adaptability), Weaknesses (e.g., unanswered questions, complexity), Opportunities (e.g., market expansion, innovation), Threats (e.g., personalization costs, user interest challenges).

#### **Step 8: Criteria for Evaluation**

The studies were categorized according to research themes related to the evaluation criteria which are effectiveness, transparency, persuasiveness, satisfaction, trust, usefulness, ease of use, efficiency, and education. These criteria were defined and used in this study according to the study done by (Nunes & Jannach, 2017).

- Effectiveness: Help users make good decisions. Higher engagement, customized activities, and adaptive gamification (Tondello et al., 2017).
- **Transparency:** Explains how the system work. Decision-support integration, adaptive learning paths (Su, 2017).
- **Persuasiveness:** Convince users to try or invest. Personalized exercises, career promotion systems (González-González et al., 2019).

- User Satisfaction: Increase the ease of use or enjoyment. Optimization of learning, motivational elements (Raftopoulou & Pallis, 2023).
- **Trust:** Increase users' confidence in the system. Enhancing tourism (Nuanmeesri, 2022), and career promotion support (Akhriza & Mumpuni, 2020).
- Usefulness: The practical value and use of the System. Gamified recommender systems are effective in large-scale data frameworks and argue for their practical application in system operations (Talhaoui et al., 2019)..
- Ease of Use: Simplicity and user friendly of the system. Mechanics, dynamics, aesthetics of gamification (Talhaoui et al., 2019).
- Efficiency: The amount to which a system effectively uses resources to achieve its purpose. Algorithmic accuracy (Nuanmeesri, 2022), learning system capabilities (Raftopoulou & Pallis, 2023).
- Education: Allow users to learn something from the system. Design principles in Massive Open Online Course (MOOCs) (Khalil et al., 2018).

# CHAPTER III

# METHODOLOGY

Gamification techniques are increasingly employed to boost user engagement and satisfaction within recommender systems, also assessing their effectiveness requires a comprehensive evaluation framework. This methodology section explains in detail how applying the Fuzzy DEMATEL method provides a systematic approach to analyzing the relationships among criteria (effectiveness, transparency, persuasiveness, satisfaction, trust, usefulness, ease of use, efficiency, and education) in evaluating the adoption of gamified recommender systems. By generating fuzzy matrices, normalizing data, and setting threshold values, this method enables the identification of significant factors and their impact on the overall system.

#### 3.1 Research Design

This study adopts an applied research design focused on evaluating the adoption of gamified recommender systems. The research design is quantitative, utilizing the Fuzzy DEMATEL (Decision Making Trial and Evaluation Laboratory) method to assess the significance and interrelations among various criteria. By employing this method, the study aims to provide a structured and systematic approach to understanding the critical factors influencing the adoption of gamified recommender systems. Four gamified recommender system designs: i) Points, Acknowledgments, and Competition (PBL), ii) Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Progression (AOP), iii) Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Social Pressure (AOS), and iv) Acknowledgments, Competition, and Time Pressure (ACT) will be evaluated by decision-makers through a questionnaire. The results from the questionnaire will be used to evaluate these gamified recommender systems using the criteria identified from the systematic literature review including effectiveness, transparency, persuasiveness, satisfaction, trust, usefulness, ease of use, efficiency, and education.

#### 3.2 Participants

The target participants for this study are 25 undergraduate students enrolled in the ethics course during the spring semester of 2023-2024. Convenience sampling will be utilized to recruit participants from this population. The inclusion criteria involve enrolment in the ethics course and willingness to participate voluntarily.

## 3.2.1 Demographic Distribution of Participants

#### Figure 1:





# Figure 2:

Field of Study Distribution



#### Figure 3:



Recommender System Usage Distribution

#### Figure 4:

Recommender Systems Used Distribution



#### 3.3 Data Collection

## 3.3.1 Instruments

The questionnaire used in this study was developed to evaluate four different gamified recommender system designs. It included questions on demographics, usage patterns, and specific criteria for evaluating each design. The development process involved:

 Identifying Key Criteria: The criteria were selected based on their relevance to the effectiveness and user engagement of recommender systems. These criteria included Effectiveness, Transparency, Persuasiveness, User Satisfaction, Trust, Usefulness, Ease of Use, Efficiency, and Education. 2. Creating Rating Scales: Each criterion was rated on a scale from 'No influence (NO)' to 'Very High influence (VH)'.

The sample of the questionnaire can be found in Appendix A of this document.

#### **3.3.2 Procedures**

The following procedures were used to conduct the study:

- 1. A literature review was conducted on gamified recommender systems in order to extract the criteria that was used for evaluation.
- 2. Obtained ethical approval from the university's ethics committee before data collection.
- 3. Printed questionnaires based on evaluating four different gamified recommender systems among 9 criteria using a scale of 'No influence (NO)' to 'Very High influence (VH) was created and were distributed during scheduled class hours to 25 students enrolled in the ethics course.
- 4. The samples from the 25 students was collected and the fuzzy DEMATEL method was used to create a cause effect relationship between the 9 criteria of the four gamified recommender systems.
- 5. The findings and results were then discussed, and recommendations and conclusions were made.

Below is a Gant chart and a flow diagram that shows how the study procedure was conducted

#### Figure 5:



Gant Chart of Study Procedure

## Figure 6:

Flow Diagram of Study Procedure



#### 3.4 Data Analysis

The Fuzzy DEMATEL method was used and it provides a systematic approach in analyzing the relationships among the criteria in evaluating the adoption of gamified recommender systems. By generating fuzzy matrices, normalizing data, and setting threshold values, this method enables the identification of significant factors and their impact on the overall system and creates a cause and effect relationship between the 9 criteria for the four gamified recommender system designs.

# **CHAPTER IV**

# **RESULTS AND FINDINGS**

### 4.1 Fuzzy DEMATEL Process

To begin with, the decision-makers (DMs) evaluation matrices were critical in obtaining the results. These matrices were constructed by collecting evaluations of the four gamified recommender system designs from 25 DMs, who assessed the various criteria for each of the gamified recommender system design. The evaluations were combined to create a comprehensive overview of the criteria's performance. For each Gamified Recommender System, Figure 1 shows the steps that was carried out using the fuzzy DEMATEL method to obtain the results for evaluation.

#### Figure 7:

Fuzzy DEMATEL Flow Diagram



#### 1. Deciding Triangular Fuzzy Numbers:

Triangular Fuzzy Numbers (TFNs) were decided based on expert judgment and literature review to translate linguistic terms into numerical values. The TFNs consist of three parameters: lower limit (L), middle value (M), and upper limit (U). These numbers capture the range of possible values for a given linguistic term.

Here is how the TFNs were decided:

- No influence (1): The TFN is (0, 0, 0.25). This reflects no influence between criteria, with a slight upper bound for minimal potential influence.
- Very low influence (2): The TFN is (0, 0.25, 0.5). This reflects a very low influence, extending from no influence up to a low level.
- Low influence (3): The TFN is (0.25, 0.5, 0.75). This reflects a low influence, with a middle value of 0.5.
- High influence (4): The TFN is (0.5, 0.75, 1). This reflects a high influence, with an upper limit of full influence.

• Very high influence (5): The TFN is (0.75, 1, 1). This reflects a very high influence, typically considered full influence.

The following table shows the fuzzy scale used in the model.

#### Table 1:

*Fuzzy Scale:* 

|   | Code | Linguistic terms    | L    | М    | U    |
|---|------|---------------------|------|------|------|
|   | 1    | No influence        | 0    | 0    | 0.25 |
|   | 2    | Very low influence  | 0    | 0.25 | 0.5  |
|   | 3    | Low influence       | 0.25 | 0.5  | 0.75 |
|   | 4    | High influence      | 0.5  | 0.75 | 1    |
| C | 5    | Very high influence | 0.75 | 1    | 1    |

#### btaining Linguistic Evaluations:

Linguistic evaluations were obtained from each of the 25 decision-makers (DMs) for each pair of criteria. Each DM provided an evaluation based on their perception of the influence of one criterion on another using the predefined linguistic terms.

#### **3.** Converting to Triangular Fuzzy Numbers:

Each linguistic evaluation is converted to a triangular fuzzy number (TFN) using the fuzzy scale. The conversion process involves mapping the linguistic term to its corresponding TFN. For example:

- If a DM rates the influence of Criterion 1 on Criterion 2 as "High," this is converted to the TFN (0.5, 0.75, 1).
- If a DM rates the influence of Criterion 1 on Criterion 2 as "Low," this is converted to the TFN (0.25, 0.5, 0.75).

Let  $L_{ij}^k$ ,  $M_{ij}^k$  and  $U_{ij}^k$  be the lower, middle, and upper values of the triangular fuzzy number given by the k - th decision-maker for the influence of criterion *i* on criterion *j*.

#### 4. Constructing the Initial Direct-Relation Matrix:
The initial direct-relation matrix is constructed by averaging the TFNs provided by all decision-makers for each criterion pair. The TFNs from each DM are combined using the following equations:

Combined 
$$L_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} L_{ij}^{k}$$
 .....(1)  
Combined  $M_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} M_{ij}^{k}$  .....(2)  
Combined  $U_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} U_{ij}^{k}$  .....(3)  
**Example Calculation:**

If three DMs provided the following evaluations for the influence of Criterion 1 on Criterion 2:

- DM1: High (0.5, 0.75, 1)
- DM2: Low (0.25, 0.5, 0.75)
- DM3: Very High (0.75, 1, 1)

The combined TFN for Criterion 1 on Criterion 2 is calculated as:

Combined 
$$L_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.5 + 0.25 + 0.75) = 0.5$$
  
Combined  $M_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.75 + 0.5 + 1) = 0.75$   
Combined  $U_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(1 + 0.75 + 1) = 0.9167$ 

# 5. Sample Evaluation Matrix for Decision Maker:

Here is a sample evaluation matrix converted to triangular fuzzy numbers for one decision maker:

#### Table 2:

| Criteria  | Criterion | Criterion | Criterion  |
|-----------|-----------|-----------|------------|
|           | 1         | 2         | 3          |
| Criterion | (0, 0, 0) | (0.5,     | (0.25,     |
| 1         |           | 0.75, 1)  | 0.5, 0.75) |
| Criterion | (0, 0.25, | (0, 0, 0) | (0.75, 1,  |
| 2         | 0.5)      |           | 1)         |
| Criterion | (0.25,    | (0.25,    | (0, 0, 0)  |

Sample Evaluation Matrix:

| Criteria | Criterion  | Criterion  | Criterion |
|----------|------------|------------|-----------|
|          | 1          | 2          | 3         |
| 3        | 0.5, 0.75) | 0.5, 0.75) |           |

## 6. Generate the Fuzzy Direct-Relation Matrix

According to (Tzeng et al., 2011)

- Construct an  $n \times n$  matrix representing the direct relations among the *n* criteria.
- Each element in the matrix is represented by a fuzzy number, combining multiple experts' opinions if necessary.

Calculate the arithmetic mean of all DMs' opinions to generate the direct relation matrix given by

This gives the direct relation matrix for tables (3, 9, 15 and 21) as shown below for each gamified design.

# 7. Normalize the Fuzzy Direct-Relation Matrix

According to (Li & Tzeng, 2009)

Normalize the fuzzy direct-relation matrix using the formula

$$\tilde{x}_{ij} = \frac{\tilde{z}_{ij}}{r} = \left(\frac{l_{ij}}{r}, \frac{m_{ij}}{r}, \frac{u_{ij}}{r}\right).$$
(5)

Where

$$r = \max_{i,j} \left\{ \max_{i} \sum_{j=1}^{n} u_{ij}, \max_{j} \sum_{i=1}^{n} u_{ij} \right\} \qquad i, j \in \{1, 2, 3, ..., n\}$$

This gives the normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix tables (4, 10, 16 and 22) for each gamified design as shown below.

#### 8. Fuzzy Total-Relation Matrix

According to (Tseng & Lin, 2008)

Compute the fuzzy total-relation matrix using the formula

 $\widetilde{T} = \lim_{k \to +\infty} \left( \widetilde{x}^1 \bigoplus \widetilde{x}^2 \bigoplus \dots \bigoplus \widetilde{x}^k \right)....(6)$ 

If each element of the fuzzy total-relation matrix is expressed as  $\tilde{t}_{ij} = (l_{ij}, m_{ij}, u_{ij})$ , it can be calculated as follows:

$$\begin{split} [l_{ij}^{"}] &= x_l \times (l - x_l)^{-1} \\ [m_{ij}^{"}] &= x_m \times (l - x_m)^{-1} \\ [u_{ij}^{"}] &= x_u \times (l - x_u)^{-1} \end{split}$$

This gives the fuzzy total-relation matrix tables (5, 11, 17 and 23) for each gamified design as shown below

### 9. Defuzzify into Crisp Values

Apply the CFCS method to obtain crisp values from the fuzzy totalrelation matrix.

The CFCS method proposed by Opricovic & Tzeng, 2003) will used to obtain a crisp value of total-relation matrix. The steps of CFCS method are as follows:

$$l_{ij}^{n} = \frac{\left(l_{ij}^{t} - \min l_{ij}^{t}\right)}{\Delta_{min}^{max}}$$
$$m_{ij}^{n} = \frac{\left(m_{ij}^{t} - \min l_{ij}^{t}\right)}{\Delta_{min}^{max}}$$
$$u_{ij}^{n} = \frac{\left(u_{ij}^{t} - \min l_{ij}^{t}\right)}{\Delta_{min}^{max}}$$
So that

$$\Delta_{min}^{max} = \max u_{ij}^t - \min l_{ij}^t$$

Therefore, calculating the upper and lower bounds of normalized values:

$$l_{ij}^{s} = \frac{m_{ij}^{n}}{(1 + m_{ij}^{n} - l_{ij}^{n})}$$
$$u_{ij}^{s} = \frac{u_{ij}^{n}}{(1 + u_{ij}^{n} - l_{ij}^{n})}$$

The CFCS algorithm output is crisp values.

Therefore, to calculate the total normalized crisp value:

$$x_{ij} = \frac{[l_{ij}^{s}(1-l_{ij}^{s})+u_{ij}^{s} \times u_{ij}^{s}]}{[1-l_{ij}^{s}+u_{ij}^{s}]}.$$
(7)

This gives the crisp total-relation matrix tables (6, 12, 18 and 24) for each gamified design as shown below

#### **10. Threshold Value**

Tsai and Chou (2009) state that in order to compute the internal relations matrix, the threshold value needs to be determined. As a result, the network relationship map (NRM) is drawn and partial relations are ignored. The NRM only shows relations whose values in matrix T are greater than the threshold value. It is sufficient to compute the average values of the matrix T in order to determine the threshold value for relations. All values in matrix T that are less than the threshold value are set to zero once the threshold intensity has been established, meaning that the previously stated causal relationship is not taken into account.

This gives the crisp total- relationships matrix by considering the threshold value tables (7, 13, 19 and 25) for each gamified design as shown below.

#### 11. Final Output and Causal Relation Diagram

According to (Wu, 2008) the sum of each row and each column of matrix T is calculated to determine the degree of importance and net effects of each factor. The sum of rows (D) and columns (R) can be calculated as follows:

The values of D+R and D-R can be determined by D and R, where D+R reflects the degree of importance of factor i in the overall system and D-R represents the net impacts that factor i contributes to the system.

The findings will then be Summarized and a causal relation diagram will be created to visualize the relationships among criteria. The figure (causal relation diagram) that will follow shows the model of significant relations. This model can be represented as a diagram in which the values of (D+R) are placed on the horizontal axis and the values of (D-R) on the vertical axis. The position and interaction of each factor with a point in the coordinates (D+R, D-R) are determined by coordinate system

This gives the final output tables (8, 14, 20 and 26) and also cause-effect diagram (Figures: 2, 3, 4 and 5) for each gamified recommender system as shown below.

### 4.2 Evaluation Of Gamified Recommender System Designs

#### 4.2.1 Design 1 Points, Acknowledgments, and Competition (PBL)



# **Constructing the Initial Direct-Relation Matrix:**

The initial direct-relation matrix is constructed by averaging the TFNs provided by all decision-makers for each criterion pair. The TFNs from each DM are combined using the following equations:

| Combined $L_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} L_{ij}^{k}$ | (1) |
|---|-----|
| Combined $M_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} M_{ij}^k$   | (2) |
| Combined $U_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} U_{ij}^k$   | (3) |
| Example Calculation:  |     |

If three DMs provided the following evaluations for the influence of Criterion 1 on Criterion 2:

- DM1: High (0.5, 0.75, 1)
- DM2: Low (0.25, 0.5, 0.75)
- DM3: Very High (0.75, 1, 1)

The combined TFN for Criterion 1 on Criterion 2 is calculated as:

Combined 
$$L_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.5 + 0.25 + 0.75) = 0.5$$
  
Combined  $M_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.75 + 0.5 + 1) = 0.75$   
Combined  $U_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(1 + 0.75 + 1) = 0.9167$ 

# Sample Evaluation Matrix for Decision Maker:

Here is a sample evaluation matrix converted to triangular fuzzy numbers for one decision maker:

| Criteria  | Criterion  | Criterion  | Criterion  |
|-----------|------------|------------|------------|
|           | 1          | 2          | 3          |
| Criterion | (0, 0, 0)  | (0.5,      | (0.25,     |
| 1         |            | 0.75, 1)   | 0.5, 0.75) |
| Criterion | (0, 0.25,  | (0, 0, 0)  | (0.75, 1,  |
| 2         | 0.5)       |            | 1)         |
| Criterion | (0.25,     | (0.25,     | (0, 0, 0)  |
| 3         | 0.5, 0.75) | 0.5, 0.75) |            |

Sample Evaluation Matrix:

#### • Direct- relation matrix

By using step 6 equation (4) the table below indicates the direct relation matrix, which is the same as pairwise comparison matrix of the decision makers in the design 1.

## Table 3:

|      | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | (0.000, | (0.300, | (0.310, | (0.430, | (0.360, | (0.270, | (0.320, | (0.390, | (0.290, |
| eri  | 0.000,  | 0.540,  | 0.540,  | 0.670,  | 0.560,  | 0.480,  | 0.560,  | 0.600,  | 0.490,  |
| on   | 0.000)  | 0.760)  | 0.750)  | 0.860)  | 0.770)  | 0.710)  | 0.780)  | 0.780)  | 0.720)  |
| 1    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.300, | (0.000, | (0.270, | (0.380, | (0.280, | (0.330, | (0.360, | (0.280, | (0.380, |
| eri  | 0.540,  | 0.000,  | 0.480,  | 0.620,  | 0.480,  | 0.540,  | 0.600,  | 0.460,  | 0.630,  |
| on   | 0.760)  | 0.000)  | 0.710)  | 0.820)  | 0.720)  | 0.750)  | 0.820)  | 0.700)  | 0.840)  |
| 2    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

The direct relation matrix- Design 1

Continue (3)

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 42      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| crit | (0.310, | (0.270, | (0.000, | (0.400, | (0.320, | (0.350, | (0.290, | (0.330, | (0.240, |
| eri  | 0.540,  | 0.480,  | 0.000,  | 0.620,  | 0.530,  | 0.570,  | 0.510,  | 0.560,  | 0.430,  |
| on   | 0.750)  | 0.710)  | 0.000)  | 0.810)  | 0.740)  | 0.780)  | 0.710)  | 0.770)  | 0.670)  |
| 3    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.430, | (0.380, | (0.400, | (0.000, | (0.390, | (0.390, | (0.420, | (0.320, | (0.360, |
| eri  | 0.670,  | 0.620,  | 0.620,  | 0.000,  | 0.590,  | 0.620,  | 0.650,  | 0.550,  | 0.560,  |
| on   | 0.860)  | 0.820)  | 0.810)  | 0.000)  | 0.770)  | 0.830)  | 0.840)  | 0.770)  | 0.760)  |
| 4    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.360, | (0.280, | (0.320, | (0.390, | (0.000, | (0.450, | (0.280, | (0.400, | (0.290, |
| eri  | 0.560,  | 0.480,  | 0.530,  | 0.590,  | 0.000,  | 0.650,  | 0.490,  | 0.630,  | 0.500,  |
| on   | 0.770)  | 0.720)  | 0.740)  | 0.770)  | 0.000)  | 0.800)  | 0.700)  | 0.840)  | 0.740)  |
| 5    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.270, | (0.330, | (0.350, | (0.390, | (0.450, | (0.000, | (0.400, | (0.310, | (0.280, |
| eri  | 0.480,  | 0.540,  | 0.570,  | 0.620,  | 0.650,  | 0.000,  | 0.600,  | 0.540,  | 0.490,  |
| on   | 0.710)  | 0.750)  | 0.780)  | 0.830)  | 0.800)  | 0.000)  | 0.770)  | 0.760)  | 0.730)  |
| 6    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.320, | (0.360, | (0.290, | (0.420, | (0.280, | (0.400, | (0.000, | (0.330, | (0.300, |
| eri  | 0.560,  | 0.600,  | 0.510,  | 0.650,  | 0.490,  | 0.600,  | 0.000,  | 0.540,  | 0.530,  |
| on   | 0.780)  | 0.820)  | 0.710)  | 0.840)  | 0.700)  | 0.770)  | 0.000)  | 0.720)  | 0.750)  |
| 7    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.390, | (0.280, | (0.330, | (0.320, | (0.400, | (0.310, | (0.330, | (0.000, | (0.340, |
| eri  | 0.600,  | 0.460,  | 0.560,  | 0.550,  | 0.630,  | 0.540,  | 0.540,  | 0.000,  | 0.540,  |
| on   | 0.780)  | 0.700)  | 0.770)  | 0.770)  | 0.840)  | 0.760)  | 0.720)  | 0.000)  | 0.740)  |
| 8    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.290, | (0.380, | (0.240, | (0.360, | (0.290, | (0.280, | (0.300, | (0.330, | (0.000, |
| eri  | 0.490,  | 0.630,  | 0.430,  | 0.560,  | 0.500,  | 0.490,  | 0.530,  | 0.530,  | 0.000,  |
| on   | 0.720)  | 0.840)  | 0.670)  | 0.760)  | 0.740)  | 0.730)  | 0.750)  | 0.730)  | 0.000)  |
| 9    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

# • Normalize the fuzzy direct-relation matrix

By using step 7 equation (5) the table below shows the normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix of design 1

# Table 4:

|      | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | 0.000,) | 0.046,) | 0.048,) | 0.067,) | 0.056,) | 0.042,) | 0.050,) | 0.060,) | 0.045,) |
| eri  | 0.000,  | 0.084,  | 0.084,  | 0.104,  | 0.087,  | 0.074,  | 0.087,  | 0.093,  | 0.076,  |
| on   | (0.000  | (0.118  | (0.116  | (0.133  | (0.119  | (0.110  | (0.121  | (0.121  | (0.111  |
| 1    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.046,) | 0.000,) | 0.042,) | 0.059,) | 0.043,) | 0.051,) | 0.056,) | 0.043,) | 0.059,) |
| eri  | 0.084,  | 0.000,  | 0.074,  | 0.096,  | 0.074,  | 0.084,  | 0.093,  | 0.071,  | 0.098,  |
| on   | (0.118  | (0.000  | (0.110  | (0.127  | (0.111  | (0.116  | (0.127  | (0.108  | (0.130  |
| 2    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

The normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix-Design 1

| Са   | ontinue (4 | 4)      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
|------|------------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| crit | 0.048,)    | 0.042,) | 0.000,) | 0.062,) | 0.050,) | 0.054,) | 0.045,) | 0.051,) | 0.037,) |
| eri  | 0.084,     | 0.074,  | 0.000,  | 0.096,  | 0.082,  | 0.088,  | 0.079,  | 0.087,  | 0.067,  |
| on   | (0.116     | (0.110  | (0.000  | (0.125  | (0.115  | (0.121  | (0.110  | (0.119  | (0.104  |
| 3    |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.067,)    | 0.059,) | 0.062,) | 0.000,) | 0.060,) | 0.060,) | 0.065,) | 0.050,) | 0.056,) |
| eri  | 0.104,     | 0.096,  | 0.096,  | 0.000,  | 0.091,  | 0.096,  | 0.101,  | 0.085,  | 0.087,  |
| on   | (0.133     | (0.127  | (0.125  | (0.000) | (0.119  | (0.128  | (0.130  | (0.119  | (0.118  |
| 4    |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.056,)    | 0.043,) | 0.050,) | 0.060,) | 0.000,) | 0.070,) | 0.043,) | 0.062,) | 0.045,) |
| eri  | 0.087,     | 0.074,  | 0.082,  | 0.091,  | 0.000,  | 0.101,  | 0.076,  | 0.098,  | 0.077,  |
| on   | (0.119     | (0.111  | (0.115  | (0.119  | (0.000) | (0.124  | (0.108  | (0.130  | (0.115  |
| 5    |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.042,)    | 0.051,) | 0.054,) | 0.060,) | 0.070,) | 0.000,) | 0.062,) | 0.048,) | 0.043,) |
| eri  | 0.074,     | 0.084,  | 0.088,  | 0.096,  | 0.101,  | 0.000,  | 0.093,  | 0.084,  | 0.076,  |
| on   | (0.110     | (0.116  | (0.121  | (0.128  | (0.124  | (0.000) | (0.119  | (0.118  | (0.113  |
| 6    |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.050,)    | 0.056,) | 0.045,) | 0.065,) | 0.043,) | 0.062,) | 0.000,) | 0.051,) | 0.046,) |
| eri  | 0.087,     | 0.093,  | 0.079,  | 0.101,  | 0.076,  | 0.093,  | 0.000,  | 0.084,  | 0.082,  |
| on   | (0.121     | (0.127  | (0.110  | (0.130  | (0.108  | (0.119  | (0.000) | (0.111  | (0.116  |
| 7    |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.060,)    | 0.043,) | 0.051,) | 0.050,) | 0.062,) | 0.048,) | 0.051,) | 0.000,) | 0.053,) |
| eri  | 0.093,     | 0.071,  | 0.087,  | 0.085,  | 0.098,  | 0.084,  | 0.084,  | 0.000,  | 0.084,  |
| on   | (0.121     | (0.108  | (0.119  | (0.119  | (0.130  | (0.118  | (0.111  | (0.000) | (0.115  |
| 8    |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.045,)    | 0.059,) | 0.037,) | 0.056,) | 0.045,) | 0.043,) | 0.046,) | 0.051,) | 0.000,) |
| eri  | 0.076,     | 0.098,  | 0.067,  | 0.087,  | 0.077,  | 0.076,  | 0.082,  | 0.082,  | 0.000,  |
| on   | (0.111     | (0.130  | (0.104  | (0.118  | (0.115  | (0.113  | (0.116  | (0.113  | (0.000  |
| 9    |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

# • Fuzzy total-relation matrix

By using step 8 equation (6) The table below shows the fuzzy total-relation matrix of design 1

# Table 5:

| The | fuzzy | total-re | lation | matrix- | Design 1 | l |
|-----|-------|----------|--------|---------|----------|---|
|     |       |          |        |         | 0        |   |

|      | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | (0.036, | (0.078, | (0.079, | (0.103, | (0.089, | (0.077, | (0.083, | (0.092, | (0.076, |
| eri  | 0.175,  | 0.248,  | 0.245,  | 0.284,  | 0.254,  | 0.246,  | 0.256,  | 0.258,  | 0.235,  |
| on   | 1.863)  | 1.964)  | 1.915)  | 2.068)  | 1.954)  | 1.961)  | 1.960)  | 1.953)  | 1.913)  |
| 1    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.078, | (0.033, | (0.072, | (0.094, | (0.077, | (0.084, | (0.087, | (0.076, | (0.087, |
| eri  | 0.248,  | 0.168,  | 0.233,  | 0.274,  | 0.239,  | 0.250,  | 0.258,  | 0.236,  | 0.250,  |
| on   | 1.964)  | 1.856)  | 1.906)  | 2.059)  | 1.944)  | 1.962)  | 1.961)  | 1.939)  | 1.925)  |
| 2    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

| C    | ontinue(5 | )       |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
|------|-----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| crit | (0.079,   | (0.072, | (0.032, | (0.096, | (0.082, | (0.086, | (0.077, | (0.082, | (0.067, |
| eri  | 0.245,    | 0.233,  | 0.161,  | 0.270,  | 0.243,  | 0.250,  | 0.242,  | 0.246,  | 0.220,  |
| on   | 1.915)    | 1.906)  | 1.760)  | 2.008)  | 1.899)  | 1.918)  | 1.899)  | 1.900)  | 1.856)  |
| 3    |           |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.103,   | (0.094, | (0.096, | (0.046, | (0.099, | (0.099, | (0.102, | (0.088, | (0.090, |
| eri  | 0.284,    | 0.274,  | 0.270,  | 0.207,  | 0.273,  | 0.279,  | 0.283,  | 0.267,  | 0.259,  |
| on   | 2.068)    | 2.059)  | 2.008)  | 2.043)  | 2.041)  | 2.064)  | 2.054)  | 2.038)  | 2.004)  |
| 4    |           |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.089,   | (0.077, | (0.082, | (0.099, | (0.038, | (0.103, | (0.079, | (0.095, | (0.077, |
| eri  | 0.254,    | 0.239,  | 0.243,  | 0.273,  | 0.174,  | 0.267,  | 0.246,  | 0.262,  | 0.236,  |
| on   | 1.954)    | 1.944)  | 1.899)  | 2.041)  | 1.833)  | 1.957)  | 1.935)  | 1.946)  | 1.901)  |
| 5    |           |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.077,   | (0.084, | (0.086, | (0.099, | (0.103, | (0.038, | (0.095, | (0.082, | (0.075, |
| eri  | 0.246,    | 0.250,  | 0.250,  | 0.279,  | 0.267,  | 0.178,  | 0.262,  | 0.252,  | 0.236,  |
| on   | 1.961)    | 1.962)  | 1.918)  | 2.064)  | 1.957)  | 1.861)  | 1.958)  | 1.950)  | 1.914)  |
| 6    |           |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.083,   | (0.087, | (0.077, | (0.102, | (0.079, | (0.095, | (0.036, | (0.084, | (0.078, |
| eri  | 0.256,    | 0.258,  | 0.242,  | 0.283,  | 0.246,  | 0.262,  | 0.178,  | 0.251,  | 0.242,  |
| on   | 1.960)    | 1.961)  | 1.899)  | 2.054)  | 1.935)  | 1.958)  | 1.841)  | 1.934)  | 1.906)  |
| 7    |           |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.092,   | (0.076, | (0.082, | (0.088, | (0.095, | (0.083, | (0.084, | (0.036, | (0.083, |
| eri  | 0.258,    | 0.236,  | 0.246,  | 0.267,  | 0.262,  | 0.252,  | 0.252,  | 0.172,  | 0.240,  |
| on   | 1.955)    | 1.942)  | 1.903)  | 2.041)  | 1.948)  | 1.952)  | 1.937)  | 1.830)  | 1.901)  |
| 8    |           |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.076,   | (0.087, | (0.067, | (0.090, | (0.077, | (0.075, | (0.077, | (0.081, | (0.031, |
| eri  | 0.235,    | 0.250,  | 0.220,  | 0.258,  | 0.235,  | 0.236,  | 0.241,  | 0.238,  | 0.155,  |
| on   | 1.910)    | 1.922)  | 1.854)  | 2.001)  | 1.898)  | 1.911)  | 1.904)  | 1.894)  | 1.762)  |
| 9    |           |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

• **Defuzzifying into crisp values** By using step 9 equation (7) the table below shows crisp total-relation matrix of design 1

| Table 6:                                  |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |  |  |
|---|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--|--|
| The crisp total-relation matrix- Design 1 |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |  |  |
|   | criter | criter | criter | criter | criter | criter | criter | criter | criter |  |  |
|   | ion1   | ion2   | ion3   | ion4   | ion5   | ion6   | ion7   | ion8   | ion9   |  |  |
| criter                                    | 0.465  | 0.54   | 0.528  | 0.584  | 0.543  | 0.537  | 0.545  | 0.546  | 0.52   |  |  |
| ion1                                      |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |  |  |
| criter                                    | 0.54   | 0.458  | 0.518  | 0.574  | 0.529  | 0.541  | 0.547  | 0.526  | 0.535  |  |  |
| ion2                                      |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |  |  |
| criter                                    | 0.53   | 0.519  | 0.436  | 0.564  | 0.526  | 0.535  | 0.525  | 0.528  | 0.5    |  |  |
| ion3                                      |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |  |  |
| criter                                    | 0.584  | 0.574  | 0.562  | 0.517  | 0.571  | 0.579  | 0.581  | 0.565  | 0.553  |  |  |
| ion4                                      |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |        |  |  |

Continue (6)

|            |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       | 45    |
|------------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|
| criterion5 | 0.544 | 0.53  | 0.525 | 0.571 | 0.459 | 0.555 | 0.534 | 0.548 | 0.519 |
| criterion6 | 0.537 | 0.541 | 0.534 | 0.579 | 0.555 | 0.467 | 0.551 | 0.54  | 0.522 |
| criterion7 | 0.545 | 0.547 | 0.524 | 0.581 | 0.533 | 0.551 | 0.463 | 0.538 | 0.525 |
| criterion8 | 0.548 | 0.527 | 0.528 | 0.566 | 0.549 | 0.542 | 0.539 | 0.457 | 0.523 |
| criterion9 | 0.521 | 0.536 | 0.499 | 0.554 | 0.519 | 0.522 | 0.525 | 0.521 | 0.432 |

#### • The threshold value

By using step 10, in this Design, the threshold value is equal to 0.5330.533

## Table 7:

*The crisp total- relationships matrix by considering the threshold value-Design 1* 

|        | criter<br>ion1 | criter<br>ion2 | criter<br>ion3 | criter<br>ion4 | criter<br>ion5 | criter<br>ion6 | criter<br>ion7 | criter<br>ion8 | criter<br>ion9 |
|--------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|
| criter | 0              | 0.54           | 0              | 0.584          | 0.543          | 0.537          | 0.545          | 0.546          | 0              |
| ion1   |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter | 0.54           | 0              | 0              | 0.574          | 0              | 0.541          | 0.547          | 0              | 0.535          |
| ion2   |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0.564          | 0              | 0.535          | 0              | 0              | 0              |
| ion3   |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter | 0.584          | 0.574          | 0.562          | 0              | 0.571          | 0.579          | 0.581          | 0.565          | 0.553          |
| ion4   |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter | 0.544          | 0              | 0              | 0.571          | 0              | 0.555          | 0.534          | 0.548          | 0              |
| ion5   |                |                |                |                |                | _              |                |                | _              |
| criter | 0.537          | 0.541          | 0.534          | 0.579          | 0.555          | 0              | 0.551          | 0.54           | 0              |
| ion6   |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter | 0.545          | 0.547          | 0              | 0.581          | 0.533          | 0.551          | 0              | 0.538          | 0              |
| ion7   | 0 5 4 0        | 0              | 0              | 0.500          | 0 5 4 0        | 0.540          | 0.520          | 0              | 0              |
| criter | 0.548          | 0              | 0              | 0.566          | 0.549          | 0.542          | 0.539          | 0              | 0              |
| 10N8   | 0              | 0.526          | 0              | 0 554          | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              |
| criter | 0              | 0.536          | 0              | 0.554          | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              |
| iony   |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |

# • Final output and causal relation diagram

By using step 11 equation (8) and (9) the table below shows the final output and causal relation diagram for Design 1

#### Table 8:

|            | R     | D     | D+R    | D-R    |
|------------|-------|-------|--------|--------|
| criterion1 | 4.814 | 4.808 | 9.622  | -0.006 |
| criterion2 | 4.772 | 4.768 | 9.54   | -0.004 |
| criterion3 | 4.655 | 4.664 | 9.318  | 0.009  |
| criterion4 | 5.09  | 5.085 | 10.175 | -0.006 |

|            |       |       |       | 46     |
|------------|-------|-------|-------|--------|
| criterion5 | 4.784 | 4.785 | 9.569 | 0.002  |
| criterion6 | 4.83  | 4.826 | 9.656 | -0.004 |
| criterion7 | 4.81  | 4.808 | 9.618 | -0.002 |
| criterion8 | 4.769 | 4.778 | 9.548 | 0.009  |
| criterion9 | 4.629 | 4.631 | 9.259 | 0.002  |

4.2.2 Design 2 -Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Progression (AOP)



# **Constructing the Initial Direct-Relation Matrix:**

The initial direct-relation matrix is constructed by averaging the TFNs provided by all decision-makers for each criterion pair. The TFNs from each DM are combined using the following equations:

| Combined $L_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} L_{ij}^k$ | (1) |
|---|-----|
| Combined $M_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} M_{ij}^k$ | (2) |
| Combined $U_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} U_{ij}^k$ | (3) |
| Example Calculation:                                      |     |

If three DMs provided the following evaluations for the influence of Criterion 1 on Criterion 2:

- DM2: Low (0.25, 0.5, 0.75)
- DM3: Very High (0.75, 1, 1)

The combined TFN for Criterion 1 on Criterion 2 is calculated as:

Combined 
$$L_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.5 + 0.25 + 0.75) = 0.5$$
  
Combined  $M_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.75 + 0.5 + 1) = 0.75$   
Combined  $U_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(1 + 0.75 + 1) = 0.9167$ 

# Sample Evaluation Matrix for Decision Maker:

Here is a sample evaluation matrix converted to triangular fuzzy numbers for one decision maker:

| Criteria    | Criterion            | Criterion            | Criterion  |
|-------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------|
|             | 1                    | 2                    | 3          |
| Criterion   | (0, 0, 0)            | (0.5,                | (0.25,     |
| 1           |                      | 0.75, 1)             | 0.5, 0.75) |
| Criterion   | (0, 0.25,            | (0, 0, 0)            | (0.75, 1,  |
| 2           | 0.5)                 |                      | 1)         |
| Criterion 3 | (0.25,<br>0.5, 0.75) | (0.25,<br>0.5, 0.75) | (0, 0, 0)  |

Sample Evaluation Matrix:

#### • Direct- relation matrix

By using step 6 equation (4) the table below indicates the direct relation matrix, which is the same as pairwise comparison matrix of the decision makers in the design 2.

Table 9:

The direct relation matrix- Design 2

|      | criteri  | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1      | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | (0.000,  | (0.370, | (0.350, | (0.410, | (0.370, | (0.420, | (0.550, | (0.250, | (0.340, |
| eri  | 0.000,   | 0.590,  | 0.600,  | 0.650,  | 0.600,  | 0.640,  | 0.800,  | 0.430,  | 0.560,  |
| on1  | 0.000)   | 0.790)  | 0.800)  | 0.830)  | 0.800)  | 0.820)  | 0.930)  | 0.640)  | 0.780)  |
|      | Continue | e (9)   |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 48      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| crit | (0.370, | (0.000, | (0.230, | (0.290, | (0.390, | (0.340, | (0.280, | (0.210, | (0.320, |
| eri  | 0.590,  | 0.000,  | 0.440,  | 0.520,  | 0.620,  | 0.560,  | 0.490,  | 0.400,  | 0.550,  |
| on2  | 0.790)  | 0.000)  | 0.680)  | 0.750)  | 0.790)  | 0.780)  | 0.700)  | 0.630)  | 0.780)  |
| crit | (0.350, | (0.230, | (0.000, | (0.350, | (0.360, | (0.390, | (0.350, | (0.330, | (0.330, |
| eri  | 0.600,  | 0.440,  | 0.000,  | 0.560,  | 0.580,  | 0.640,  | 0.590,  | 0.560,  | 0.570,  |
| on3  | 0.800)  | 0.680)  | 0.000)  | 0.760)  | 0.780)  | 0.850)  | 0.800)  | 0.770)  | 0.810)  |
| crit | (0.400, | (0.290, | (0.350, | (0.000, | (0.280, | (0.330, | (0.410, | (0.370, | (0.310, |
| eri  | 0.640,  | 0.520,  | 0.560,  | 0.000,  | 0.490,  | 0.550,  | 0.650,  | 0.580,  | 0.550,  |
| on4  | 0.820)  | 0.750)  | 0.760)  | 0.000)  | 0.710)  | 0.750)  | 0.840)  | 0.770)  | 0.770)  |
| crit | (0.370, | (0.380, | (0.370, | (0.280, | (0.000, | (0.370, | (0.340, | (0.280, | (0.240, |
| eri  | 0.600,  | 0.610,  | 0.590,  | 0.490,  | 0.000,  | 0.600,  | 0.570,  | 0.500,  | 0.440,  |
| on5  | 0.800)  | 0.790)  | 0.780)  | 0.710)  | 0.000)  | 0.790)  | 0.790)  | 0.730)  | 0.690)  |
| crit | (0.420, | (0.340, | (0.390, | (0.330, | (0.370, | (0.000, | (0.400, | (0.280, | (0.270, |
| eri  | 0.640,  | 0.560,  | 0.640,  | 0.550,  | 0.600,  | 0.000,  | 0.640,  | 0.500,  | 0.510,  |
| on6  | 0.820)  | 0.780)  | 0.850)  | 0.750)  | 0.790)  | 0.000)  | 0.840)  | 0.700)  | 0.720)  |
| crit | (0.530, | (0.260, | (0.350, | (0.410, | (0.340, | (0.400, | (0.000, | (0.310, | (0.280, |
| eri  | 0.780,  | 0.470,  | 0.590,  | 0.650,  | 0.570,  | 0.640,  | 0.000,  | 0.510,  | 0.500,  |
| on7  | 0.920)  | 0.690)  | 0.800)  | 0.840)  | 0.790)  | 0.840)  | 0.000)  | 0.720)  | 0.700)  |
| crit | (0.250, | (0.210, | (0.330, | (0.370, | (0.280, | (0.280, | (0.310, | (0.000, | (0.290, |
| eri  | 0.430,  | 0.400,  | 0.560,  | 0.580,  | 0.500,  | 0.500,  | 0.510,  | 0.000,  | 0.490,  |
| on8  | 0.640)  | 0.630)  | 0.770)  | 0.770)  | 0.730)  | 0.700)  | 0.720)  | 0.000)  | 0.700)  |
| crit | (0.340, | (0.320, | (0.330, | (0.310, | (0.240, | (0.270, | (0.280, | (0.290, | (0.000, |
| eri  | 0.560,  | 0.550,  | 0.570,  | 0.550,  | 0.440,  | 0.510,  | 0.500,  | 0.490,  | 0.000,  |
| on9  | 0.780)  | 0.780)  | 0.810)  | 0.770)  | 0.690)  | 0.720)  | 0.700)  | 0.700)  | 0.000)  |

# • Normalize the fuzzy direct-relation matrix

By using step 7 equation (5) The table below shows the normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix of design 2

# Table 10:

|      | criteri  | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri     | criteri | criteri |
|------|----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|-------------|---------|---------|
|      | onl      | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | <b>on</b> 7 | on8     | on9     |
| crit | 0.000,)  | 0.058,) | 0.055,) | 0.064,) | 0.058,) | 0.066,) | 0.086,)     | 0.039,) | 0.053,) |
| eri  | 0.000,   | 0.092,  | 0.094,  | 0.102,  | 0.094,  | 0.100,  | 0.125,      | 0.067,  | 0.088,  |
| on1  | (0.000)  | (0.124  | (0.125  | (0.130  | (0.125  | (0.128  | (0.146      | (0.100  | (0.122  |
|      |          |         |         |         |         |         |             |         |         |
|      | Continue | e (10)  |         |         |         |         |             |         |         |
| crit | 0.058,)  | 0.000,) | 0.036,) | 0.045,) | 0.061,) | 0.053,) | 0.044,)     | 0.033,) | 0.050,) |
| eri  | 0.092,   | 0.000,  | 0.069,  | 0.081,  | 0.097,  | 0.088,  | 0.077,      | 0.063,  | 0.086,  |
| on2  | (0.124   | (0.000) | (0.106  | (0.117  | (0.124  | (0.122  | (0.110      | (0.099  | (0.122  |
| crit | 0.055,)  | 0.036,) | 0.000,) | 0.055,) | 0.056,) | 0.061,) | 0.055,)     | 0.052,) | 0.052,) |
| eri  | 0.094,   | 0.069,  | 0.000,  | 0.088,  | 0.091,  | 0.100,  | 0.092,      | 0.088,  | 0.089,  |
| on3  | (0.125   | (0.106  | (0.000) | (0.119  | (0.122  | (0.133  | (0.125      | (0.121  | (0.127  |
| crit | 0.063,)  | 0.045,) | 0.055,) | 0.000,) | 0.044,) | 0.052,) | 0.064,)     | 0.058,) | 0.049,) |
| eri  | 0.100,   | 0.081,  | 0.088,  | 0.000,  | 0.077,  | 0.086,  | 0.102,      | 0.091,  | 0.086,  |
|      |          |         |         |         |         |         |             |         |         |

The normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix-Design 2

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 49      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| on4  | (0.128  | (0.117  | (0.119  | (0.000  | (0.111  | (0.117  | (0.131  | (0.121  | (0.121  |
| crit | 0.058,) | 0.059,) | 0.058,) | 0.044,) | 0.000,) | 0.058,) | 0.053,) | 0.044,) | 0.038,) |
| eri  | 0.094,  | 0.095,  | 0.092,  | 0.077,  | 0.000,  | 0.094,  | 0.089,  | 0.078,  | 0.069,  |
| on5  | (0.125  | (0.124  | (0.122  | (0.111  | (0.000) | (0.124  | (0.124  | (0.114  | (0.108  |
| crit | 0.066,) | 0.053,) | 0.061,) | 0.052,) | 0.058,) | 0.000,) | 0.063,) | 0.044,) | 0.042,) |
| eri  | 0.100,  | 0.088,  | 0.100,  | 0.086,  | 0.094,  | 0.000,  | 0.100,  | 0.078,  | 0.080,  |
| on6  | (0.128  | (0.122  | (0.133  | (0.117  | (0.124  | (0.000) | (0.131  | (0.110  | (0.113  |
| crit | 0.083,) | 0.041,) | 0.055,) | 0.064,) | 0.053,) | 0.063,) | 0.000,) | 0.049,) | 0.044,) |
| eri  | 0.122,  | 0.074,  | 0.092,  | 0.102,  | 0.089,  | 0.100,  | 0.000,  | 0.080,  | 0.078,  |
| on7  | (0.144  | (0.108  | (0.125  | (0.131  | (0.124  | (0.131  | (0.000) | (0.113  | (0.110  |
| crit | 0.039,) | 0.033,) | 0.052,) | 0.058,) | 0.044,) | 0.044,) | 0.049,) | 0.000,) | 0.045,) |
| eri  | 0.067,  | 0.063,  | 0.088,  | 0.091,  | 0.078,  | 0.078,  | 0.080,  | 0.000,  | 0.077,  |
| on8  | (0.100  | (0.099  | (0.121  | (0.121  | (0.114  | (0.110  | (0.113  | (0.000) | (0.110  |
| crit | 0.053,) | 0.050,) | 0.052,) | 0.049,) | 0.038,) | 0.042,) | 0.044,) | 0.045,) | 0.000,) |
| eri  | 0.088,  | 0.086,  | 0.089,  | 0.086,  | 0.069,  | 0.080,  | 0.078,  | 0.077,  | 0.000,  |
| on9  | (0.122  | (0.122  | (0.127  | (0.121  | (0.108  | (0.113  | (0.110  | (0.110  | (0.000  |

# • Fuzzy total-relation matrix

By using step 8 equation (6) The table below shows the fuzzy total-relation matrix of design 2

Table 11:

The fuzzy total-relation matrix- Design 2

|      | criteri  | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1      | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | (0.047,  | (0.092, | (0.093, | (0.103, | (0.095, | (0.105, | (0.125, | (0.074, | (0.087, |
| eri  | 0.220,   | 0.273,  | 0.292,  | 0.298,  | 0.286,  | 0.301,  | 0.327,  | 0.245,  | 0.270,  |
| on1  | 2.550)   | 2.484)  | 2.614)  | 2.593)  | 2.553)  | 2.619)  | 2.659)  | 2.380)  | 2.503)  |
|      |          | ·       | ·       | ·       |         | ·       | ·       |         | ·       |
|      | Continue | e (11)  |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.092,  | (0.030, | (0.068, | (0.077, | (0.090, | (0.085, | (0.078, | (0.060, | (0.077, |
| eri  | 0.274,   | 0.164,  | 0.243,  | 0.253,  | 0.261,  | 0.262,  | 0.257,  | 0.216,  | 0.243,  |
| on2  | 2.481)   | 2.209)  | 2.424)  | 2.410)  | 2.382)  | 2.439)  | 2.454)  | 2.219)  | 2.336)  |
| crit | (0.093,  | (0.068, | (0.037, | (0.089, | (0.089, | (0.095, | (0.092, | (0.081, | (0.081, |
| eri  | 0.290,   | 0.241,  | 0.193,  | 0.273,  | 0.270,  | 0.287,  | 0.286,  | 0.250,  | 0.259,  |
| on3  | 2.607)   | 2.421)  | 2.451)  | 2.532)  | 2.500)  | 2.570)  | 2.590)  | 2.349)  | 2.457)  |
| crit | (0.101,  | (0.076, | (0.089, | (0.038, | (0.078, | (0.088, | (0.101, | (0.087, | (0.079, |
| eri  | 0.296,   | 0.251,  | 0.273,  | 0.193,  | 0.258,  | 0.276,  | 0.294,  | 0.253,  | 0.257,  |
| on4  | 2.581)   | 2.402)  | 2.529)  | 2.398)  | 2.463)  | 2.529)  | 2.566)  | 2.323)  | 2.425)  |
| crit | (0.095,  | (0.088, | (0.090, | (0.078, | (0.035, | (0.092, | (0.089, | (0.073, | (0.068, |
| eri  | 0.285,   | 0.259,  | 0.272,  | 0.258,  | 0.182,  | 0.277,  | 0.277,  | 0.237,  | 0.237,  |
| on5  | 2.547)   | 2.378)  | 2.500)  | 2.467)  | 2.333)  | 2.503)  | 2.529)  | 2.289)  | 2.385)  |
| crit | (0.105,  | (0.085, | (0.096, | (0.088, | (0.092, | (0.040, | (0.100, | (0.075, | (0.074, |
| eri  | 0.300,   | 0.261,  | 0.288,  | 0.276,  | 0.277,  | 0.201,  | 0.297,  | 0.246,  | 0.255,  |
| on6  | 2.612)   | 2.435)  | 2.570)  | 2.533)  | 2.503)  | 2.455)  | 2.597)  | 2.342)  | 2.448)  |
| crit | (0.121,  | (0.074, | (0.091, | (0.100, | (0.089, | (0.100, | (0.043, | (0.080, | (0.077, |

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 50      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| eri  | 0.322,  | 0.252,  | 0.285,  | 0.293,  | 0.276,  | 0.295,  | 0.210,  | 0.250,  | 0.257,  |
| on7  | 2.644)  | 2.442)  | 2.583)  | 2.563)  | 2.522)  | 2.590)  | 2.501)  | 2.362)  | 2.464)  |
| crit | (0.073, | (0.060, | (0.081, | (0.087, | (0.073, | (0.075, | (0.080, | (0.028, | (0.071, |
| eri  | 0.244,  | 0.215,  | 0.251,  | 0.253,  | 0.237,  | 0.246,  | 0.251,  | 0.150,  | 0.228,  |
| on8  | 2.374)  | 2.215)  | 2.349)  | 2.326)  | 2.289)  | 2.342)  | 2.368)  | 2.050)  | 2.243)  |
| crit | (0.087, | (0.077, | (0.081, | (0.079, | (0.068, | (0.074, | (0.077, | (0.071, | (0.029, |
| eri  | 0.269,  | 0.242,  | 0.260,  | 0.257,  | 0.237,  | 0.255,  | 0.258,  | 0.228,  | 0.164,  |
| on9  | 2.497)  | 2.333)  | 2.457)  | 2.428)  | 2.385)  | 2.448)  | 2.470)  | 2.243)  | 2.243)  |

• **Defuzzifying into crisp values** By using step 9 equation (7) The table below shows crisp total-relation matrix of design 2

#### Table 12:

| ••  |       |        |          |         |          |   |
|-----|-------|--------|----------|---------|----------|---|
| The | crisp | total- | relation | matrix- | Design . | 2 |

|                | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|----------------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|                | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| criteri<br>on1 | 0.615   | 0.647   | 0.684   | 0.686   | 0.669   | 0.693   | 0.721   | 0.606   | 0.648   |

| Continue   | (12)  |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
|------------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|
| criterion2 | 0.651 | 0.516 | 0.617 | 0.623 | 0.625 | 0.635 | 0.634 | 0.559 | 0.602 |
| criterion3 | 0.682 | 0.611 | 0.579 | 0.657 | 0.648 | 0.675 | 0.677 | 0.606 | 0.632 |
| criterion4 | 0.683 | 0.617 | 0.657 | 0.57  | 0.633 | 0.659 | 0.68  | 0.605 | 0.626 |
| criterion5 | 0.67  | 0.62  | 0.652 | 0.635 | 0.551 | 0.657 | 0.662 | 0.587 | 0.604 |
| criterion6 | 0.692 | 0.63  | 0.675 | 0.659 | 0.655 | 0.586 | 0.687 | 0.601 | 0.627 |
| criterion7 | 0.714 | 0.623 | 0.674 | 0.677 | 0.656 | 0.684 | 0.601 | 0.608 | 0.631 |
| criterion8 | 0.61  | 0.56  | 0.612 | 0.611 | 0.591 | 0.607 | 0.616 | 0.478 | 0.575 |
| criterion9 | 0.65  | 0.6   | 0.635 | 0.629 | 0.605 | 0.63  | 0.637 | 0.573 | 0.522 |

# • The threshold value

By using step 10, in this Design, the threshold value is equal to 0.6290.629

#### Table 13:

The crisp total- relationships matrix by considering the threshold value-Design 2

| Design  | . 2     |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|         | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|         | UII     | 0112    | 0115    | 0114    | 0115    | 0110    | 0117    | 0110    | 0117    |
| criteri | 0       | 0.647   | 0.684   | 0.686   | 0.669   | 0.693   | 0.721   | 0       | 0.648   |
| on1     |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| criteri | 0.651   | 0       | 0       | 0       | 0       | 0.635   | 0.634   | 0       | 0       |
| on2     |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| criteri | 0.682   | 0       | 0       | 0.657   | 0.648   | 0.675   | 0.677   | 0       | 0.632   |
| on3     |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| criteri | 0.683   | 0       | 0.657   | 0       | 0.633   | 0.659   | 0.68    | 0       | 0       |

|                |       |      |       |       |       |       |       |   | 51    |
|----------------|-------|------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|---|-------|
| on4<br>criteri | 0.67  | 0    | 0.652 | 0.635 | 0     | 0.657 | 0.662 | 0 | 0     |
| on5<br>criteri | 0.692 | 0.63 | 0.675 | 0.659 | 0.655 | 0     | 0.687 | 0 | 0     |
| on6<br>criteri | 0.714 | 0    | 0.674 | 0.677 | 0.656 | 0.684 | 0     | 0 | 0.631 |
| on7<br>criteri | 0     | 0    | 0     | 0     | 0     | 0     | 0     | 0 | 0     |
| on8<br>criteri | 0.65  | 0    | 0.635 | 0     | 0     | 0.63  | 0.637 | 0 | 0     |
| on9            |       |      |       |       |       |       |       |   |       |

# • Final output and causal relation diagram

By using step 11 equation (8) and (9), the table below shows final output and causal relation diagram for Design 2

#### Table 14:

*The final output – Design 2* 

|             | R     | D     | D+R    | D-R    |
|-------------|-------|-------|--------|--------|
| criterion1  | 5.968 | 5.969 | 11.937 | 0.001  |
| criterion2  | 5.425 | 5.461 | 10.886 | 0.036  |
| Continue (1 | 4)    |       |        |        |
| criterion3  | 5.784 | 5.768 | 11.552 | -0.017 |
| criterion4  | 5.747 | 5.731 | 11.478 | -0.015 |
| criterion5  | 5.633 | 5.636 | 11.269 | 0.004  |
| criterion6  | 5.825 | 5.812 | 11.636 | -0.013 |
| criterion7  | 5.916 | 5.869 | 11.785 | -0.048 |
| criterion8  | 5.222 | 5.26  | 10.482 | 0.038  |
| criterion9  | 5.466 | 5.48  | 10.946 | 0.014  |

# 4.2.3 Design 3 Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Social Pressure (AOS)



# **Constructing the Initial Direct-Relation Matrix:**

The initial direct-relation matrix is constructed by averaging the TFNs provided by all decision-makers for each criterion pair. The TFNs from each DM are combined using the following equations:

| Combined $L_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} L_{ij}^k$ | (1) |
|---|-----|
| Combined $M_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} M_{ij}^k$ | (2) |
| Combined $U_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} U_{ij}^k$ | (3) |
| Example Calculation:                                      |     |

If three DMs provided the following evaluations for the influence of Criterion 1 on Criterion 2:

- DM1: High (0.5, 0.75, 1)
- DM2: Low (0.25, 0.5, 0.75)
- DM3: Very High (0.75, 1, 1)

The combined TFN for Criterion 1 on Criterion 2 is calculated as:

52

Combined 
$$L_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.5 + 0.25 + 0.75) = 0.5$$
  
Combined  $M_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.75 + 0.5 + 1) = 0.75$   
Combined  $U_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(1 + 0.75 + 1) = 0.9167$ 

# Sample Evaluation Matrix for Decision Maker:

Here is a sample evaluation matrix converted to triangular fuzzy numbers for one decision maker:

| Criteria  | Criterion  | Criterion  | Criterion  |  |  |
|-----------|------------|------------|------------|--|--|
|           | 1          | 2          | 3          |  |  |
| Criterion | (0, 0, 0)  | (0.5,      | (0.25,     |  |  |
| 1         |            | 0.75, 1)   | 0.5, 0.75) |  |  |
| Criterion | (0, 0.25,  | (0, 0, 0)  | (0.75, 1,  |  |  |
| 2         | 0.5)       |            | 1)         |  |  |
| Criterion | (0.25,     | (0.25,     | (0, 0, 0)  |  |  |
| 3         | 0.5, 0.75) | 0.5, 0.75) |            |  |  |

Sample Evaluation Matrix:

#### • Direct- relation matrix

By using step 6 equation (4) the table below indicates the direct relation matrix, which is the same as pairwise comparison matrix of the decision makers in the design 3.

## Table 15:

| The direct relation | matrix- Design 3 | 3 |
|---------------------|------------------|---|
|                     | main Design -    | · |

|      | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | (0.000, | (0.430, | (0.330, | (0.320, | (0.220, | (0.420, | (0.560, | (0.180, | (0.400, |
| eri  | 0.000,  | 0.630,  | 0.540,  | 0.520,  | 0.450,  | 0.630,  | 0.800,  | 0.370,  | 0.620,  |
| on1  | 0.000)  | 0.770)  | 0.720)  | 0.730)  | 0.680)  | 0.800)  | 0.930)  | 0.620)  | 0.780)  |
| crit | (0.430, | (0.000, | (0.200, | (0.490, | (0.230, | (0.430, | (0.330, | (0.220, | (0.250, |
| eri  | 0.630,  | 0.000,  | 0.390,  | 0.710,  | 0.440,  | 0.670,  | 0.530,  | 0.440,  | 0.470,  |
| on2  | 0.770)  | 0.000)  | 0.630)  | 0.860)  | 0.650)  | 0.840)  | 0.710)  | 0.660)  | 0.710)  |
| crit | (0.300, | (0.230, | (0.000, | (0.440, | (0.360, | (0.440, | (0.390, | (0.150, | (0.190, |
| eri  | 0.510,  | 0.420,  | 0.000,  | 0.640,  | 0.580,  | 0.670,  | 0.610,  | 0.360,  | 0.380,  |
| on3  | 0.700)  | 0.650)  | 0.000)  | 0.800)  | 0.790)  | 0.850)  | 0.780)  | 0.610)  | 0.610)  |
| crit | (0.320, | (0.490, | (0.440, | (0.000, | (0.280, | (0.380, | (0.430, | (0.170, | (0.290, |
| eri  | 0.520,  | 0.710,  | 0.640,  | 0.000,  | 0.480,  | 0.630,  | 0.640,  | 0.390,  | 0.510,  |

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 54      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| on4  | 0.730)  | 0.860)  | 0.800)  | 0.000)  | 0.690)  | 0.830)  | 0.800)  | 0.640)  | 0.730)  |
| crit | (0.250, | (0.230, | (0.360, | (0.270, | (0.000, | (0.330, | (0.380, | (0.220, | (0.230, |
| eri  | 0.480,  | 0.440,  | 0.580,  | 0.470,  | 0.000,  | 0.550,  | 0.620,  | 0.430,  | 0.420,  |
| on5  | 0.700)  | 0.650)  | 0.790)  | 0.690)  | 0.000)  | 0.770)  | 0.790)  | 0.660)  | 0.640)  |
| crit | (0.420, | (0.400, | (0.420, | (0.360, | (0.330, | (0.000, | (0.470, | (0.300, | (0.160, |
| eri  | 0.630,  | 0.640,  | 0.650,  | 0.610,  | 0.550,  | 0.000,  | 0.700,  | 0.520,  | 0.370,  |
| on6  | 0.800)  | 0.820)  | 0.840)  | 0.810)  | 0.770)  | 0.000)  | 0.870)  | 0.710)  | 0.600)  |
| crit | (0.560, | (0.350, | (0.370, | (0.430, | (0.380, | (0.480, | (0.000, | (0.300, | (0.240, |
| eri  | 0.800,  | 0.560,  | 0.590,  | 0.640,  | 0.620,  | 0.710,  | 0.000,  | 0.510,  | 0.450,  |
| on7  | 0.930)  | 0.740)  | 0.770)  | 0.800)  | 0.790)  | 0.870)  | 0.000)  | 0.710)  | 0.680)  |
| crit | (0.180, | (0.220, | (0.160, | (0.170, | (0.220, | (0.300, | (0.300, | (0.000, | (0.380, |
| eri  | 0.370,  | 0.440,  | 0.370,  | 0.390,  | 0.430,  | 0.520,  | 0.510,  | 0.000,  | 0.580,  |
| on8  | 0.620)  | 0.660)  | 0.620)  | 0.640)  | 0.660)  | 0.710)  | 0.710)  | 0.000)  | 0.770)  |
| crit | (0.400, | (0.250, | (0.190, | (0.290, | (0.230, | (0.160, | (0.240, | (0.380, | (0.000, |
| eri  | 0.620,  | 0.470,  | 0.380,  | 0.510,  | 0.420,  | 0.370,  | 0.450,  | 0.580,  | 0.000,  |
| on9  | 0.780)  | 0.710)  | 0.610)  | 0.730)  | 0.640)  | 0.600)  | 0.680)  | 0.770)  | 0.000)  |

# • Normalize the fuzzy direct-relation matrix

By using step 7 equation (5) the table below shows the normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix of design 3

# Table 16:

|      | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | 0.000,) | 0.068,) | 0.052,) | 0.051,) | 0.035,) | 0.067,) | 0.089,) | 0.029,) | 0.064,) |
| eri  | 0.000,  | 0.100,  | 0.086,  | 0.083,  | 0.072,  | 0.100,  | 0.127,  | 0.059,  | 0.099,  |
| on   | (0.000  | (0.122  | (0.114  | (0.116  | (0.108  | (0.127  | (0.148  | (0.099  | (0.124  |
| 1    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | ,       |
| crit | 0.068,) | 0.000,) | 0.032,) | 0.078,) | 0.037,) | 0.068,) | 0.052,) | 0.035,) | 0.040,) |
| eri  | 0.100,  | 0.000,  | 0.062,  | 0.113,  | 0.070,  | 0.107,  | 0.084,  | 0.070,  | 0.075,  |
| on   | (0.122  | (0.000  | (0.100  | (0.137  | (0.103  | (0.134  | (0.113  | (0.105  | (0.113  |
| 2    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | ,       |
| crit | 0.048,) | 0.037,) | 0.000,) | 0.070,) | 0.057,) | 0.070,) | 0.062,) | 0.024,) | 0.030,) |
| eri  | 0.081,  | 0.067,  | 0.000,  | 0.102,  | 0.092,  | 0.107,  | 0.097,  | 0.057,  | 0.060,  |
| on   | (0.111  | (0.103  | (0.000  | (0.127  | (0.126  | (0.135  | (0.124  | (0.097  | (0.097  |
| 3    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | ,       |
| crit | 0.051,) | 0.078,) | 0.070,) | 0.000,) | 0.045,) | 0.060,) | 0.068,) | 0.027,) | 0.046,) |
| eri  | 0.083,  | 0.113,  | 0.102,  | 0.000,  | 0.076,  | 0.100,  | 0.102,  | 0.062,  | 0.081,  |
| on   | (0.116  | (0.137  | (0.127  | (0.000  | (0.110  | (0.132  | (0.127  | (0.102  | (0.116  |
| 4    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.040,) | 0.037,) | 0.057,) | 0.043,) | 0.000,) | 0.052,) | 0.060,) | 0.035,) | 0.037,) |
| eri  | 0.076,  | 0.070,  | 0.092,  | 0.075,  | 0.000,  | 0.087,  | 0.099,  | 0.068,  | 0.067,  |
| on   | (0.111  | (0.103  | (0.126  | (0.110  | (0.000  | (0.122  | (0.126  | (0.105  | (0.102  |
| 5    |         |         |         |         |         |         | -       |         | -       |
| crit | 0.067.) | 0.064.) | 0.067.) | 0.057.) | 0.052.) | 0.000.) | 0.075.) | 0.048.) | 0.025.) |

The normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix-Design 3

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 55      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| eri  | 0.100,  | 0.102,  | 0.103,  | 0.097,  | 0.087,  | 0.000,  | 0.111,  | 0.083,  | 0.059,  |
| on   | (0.127  | (0.130  | (0.134  | (0.129  | (0.122  | (0.000) | (0.138  | (0.113  | (0.095  |
| 6    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.089,) | 0.056,) | 0.059,) | 0.068,) | 0.060,) | 0.076,) | 0.000,) | 0.048,) | 0.038,) |
| eri  | 0.127,  | 0.089,  | 0.094,  | 0.102,  | 0.099,  | 0.113,  | 0.000,  | 0.081,  | 0.072,  |
| on   | (0.148  | (0.118  | (0.122  | (0.127  | (0.126  | (0.138  | (0.000) | (0.113  | (0.108  |
| 7    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.029,) | 0.035,) | 0.025,) | 0.027,) | 0.035,) | 0.048,) | 0.048,) | 0.000,) | 0.060,) |
| eri  | 0.059,  | 0.070,  | 0.059,  | 0.062,  | 0.068,  | 0.083,  | 0.081,  | 0.000,  | 0.092,  |
| on   | (0.099  | (0.105  | (0.099  | (0.102  | (0.105  | (0.113  | (0.113  | (0.000) | (0.122  |
| 8    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.064,) | 0.040,) | 0.030,) | 0.046,) | 0.037,) | 0.025,) | 0.038,) | 0.060,) | 0.000,) |
| eri  | 0.099,  | 0.075,  | 0.060,  | 0.081,  | 0.067,  | 0.059,  | 0.072,  | 0.092,  | 0.000,  |
| on   | (0.124  | (0.113  | (0.097  | (0.116  | (0.102  | (0.095  | (0.108  | (0.122  | (0.000) |
| 9    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

# • Fuzzy total-relation matrix

By using step 8 equation (6) the table below shows the fuzzy totalrelation matrix of design 3

# Table 17:

| The fuzzy total-relation matrix- Design 2 | 3 |
|---|---|
|---|---|

|      | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri    | criteri | criteri |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|------------|---------|---------|
|      |         | (0.104  |         | 001     |         | 010     | <u>017</u> |         | (0.001  |
| crit | (0.043, | (0.104, | (0.087, | (0.091, | (0.008, | (0.107, | (0.120,    | (0.057, | (0.091, |
| erı  | 0.195,  | 0.275,  | 0.256,  | 0.268,  | 0.237,  | 0.292,  | 0.318,     | 0.210,  | 0.251,  |
| on   | 1.596)  | 1.663)  | 1.639)  | 1.705)  | 1.605)  | 1.764)  | 1.780)     | 1.524)  | 1.577)  |
| 1    |         |         |         |         |         |         |            |         |         |
| crit | (0.103, | (0.037, | (0.066, | (0.110, | (0.066, | (0.104, | (0.092,    | (0.060, | (0.067, |
| eri  | 0.274,  | 0.174,  | 0.226,  | 0.281,  | 0.225,  | 0.286,  | 0.271,     | 0.210,  | 0.222,  |
| on   | 1.656)  | 1.508)  | 1.581)  | 1.673)  | 1.555)  | 1.719)  | 1.702)     | 1.486)  | 1.524)  |
| 2    |         |         |         |         |         |         |            |         |         |
| crit | (0.084, | (0.071, | (0.034, | (0.102, | (0.085, | (0.105, | (0.100,    | (0.048, | (0.057, |
| eri  | 0.254,  | 0.233,  | 0.165,  | 0.268,  | 0.241,  | 0.282,  | 0.278,     | 0.196,  | 0.205,  |
| on   | 1.639)  | 1.593)  | 1.483)  | 1.657)  | 1.566)  | 1.712)  | 1.703)     | 1.472)  | 1.503)  |
| 3    |         |         |         |         |         |         |            |         |         |
| crit | (0.091, | (0.111, | (0.102, | (0.042, | (0.076, | (0.101, | (0.109,    | (0.054, | (0.074, |
| eri  | 0.269,  | 0.284,  | 0.268,  | 0.189,  | 0.239,  | 0.290,  | 0.295,     | 0.211,  | 0.234,  |
| on   | 1.709)  | 1.685)  | 1.659)  | 1.611)  | 1.616)  | 1.778)  | 1.774)     | 1.536)  | 1.580)  |
| 4    | ,       | ,       | ,       |         | ,       | ,       | ,          | ,       | ,       |
| crit | (0.073, | (0.066, | (0.084, | (0.074, | (0.027, | (0.085, | (0.094,    | (0.057, | (0.060, |
| eri  | 0.242,  | 0.227,  | 0.241,  | 0.237,  | 0.150,  | 0.257,  | 0.270,     | 0.199,  | 0.204,  |
| on   | 1.613)  | 1.567)  | 1.568)  | 1.616)  | 1.430)  | 1.675)  | 1.677)     | 1.455)  | 1.483)  |
| 5    | ,       | ,       | ,       | ,       | ,       | ,       | ,          | ,       | ,       |
| crit | (0.106, | (0.099, | (0.100, | (0.096, | (0.084, | (0.045, | (0.116,    | (0.073, | (0.057, |
| eri  | 0.289,  | 0.280,  | 0.275,  | 0.283,  | 0.254,  | 0.206,  | 0.310,     | 0.232,  | 0.220,  |

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 56      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| on   | 1.752)  | 1.712)  | 1.697)  | 1.759)  | 1.658)  | 1.697)  | 1.818)  | 1.575)  | 1.595)  |
| 6    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.129, | (0.096, | (0.097, | (0.109, | (0.093, | (0.119, | (0.051, | (0.076, | (0.071, |
| eri  | 0.319,  | 0.277,  | 0.275,  | 0.294,  | 0.270,  | 0.315,  | 0.218,  | 0.237,  | 0.238,  |
| on   | 1.784)  | 1.718)  | 1.703)  | 1.774)  | 1.676)  | 1.835)  | 1.713)  | 1.589)  | 1.620)  |
| 7    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.057, | (0.060, | (0.050, | (0.054, | (0.056, | (0.074, | (0.076, | (0.020, | (0.078, |
| eri  | 0.210,  | 0.211,  | 0.196,  | 0.210,  | 0.199,  | 0.235,  | 0.237,  | 0.123,  | 0.213,  |
| on   | 1.527)  | 1.495)  | 1.473)  | 1.534)  | 1.453)  | 1.588)  | 1.588)  | 1.292)  | 1.430)  |
| 8    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.091, | (0.067, | (0.056, | (0.074, | (0.060, | (0.057, | (0.071, | (0.078, | (0.025, |
| eri  | 0.251,  | 0.223,  | 0.204,  | 0.233,  | 0.203,  | 0.223,  | 0.238,  | 0.213,  | 0.136,  |
| on   | 1.577)  | 1.531)  | 1.501)  | 1.576)  | 1.478)  | 1.606)  | 1.616)  | 1.428)  | 1.350)  |
| 9    |         | -       |         | -       | -       |         |         |         |         |

• **Defuzzifying into crisp values** By using step 9 equation (7) the table below shows crisp total-relation matrix of design 3

#### Table 18:

*The crisp total-relation matrix- Design 3* 

|             | criter<br>ion1 | criter<br>ion2 | criter<br>ion3 | criter<br>ion4 | criter<br>ion5 | criter<br>ion6 | criter<br>ion7 | criter<br>ion8 | criter<br>ion9 |
|-------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|
| criter      | 0.435          | 0.508          | 0.489          | 0.509          | 0.467          | 0.539          | 0.562          | 0.432          | 0.473          |
| ion1        |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter      | 0.508          | 0.404          | 0.456          | 0.516          | 0.451          | 0.528          | 0.513          | 0.426          | 0.442          |
| ion2        |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter      | 0.489          | 0.464          | 0.392          | 0.504          | 0.466          | 0.524          | 0.519          | 0.413          | 0.426          |
| ion3        |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter      | 0.511          | 0.518          | 0.502          | 0.432          | 0.471          | 0.539          | 0.542          | 0.434          | 0.46           |
| ion4        |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter      | 0.475          | 0.455          | 0.467          | 0.472          | 0.371          | 0.499          | 0.509          | 0.413          | 0.422          |
| ion5        |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter      | 0.533          | 0.518          | 0.512          | 0.529          | 0.489          | 0.459          | 0.56           | 0.457          | 0.451          |
| ion6        |                |                |                |                |                |                |                | 0.460          | 0.460          |
| criter      | 0.562          | 0.517          | 0.512          | 0.54           | 0.504          | 0.567          | 0.472          | 0.463          | 0.468          |
| ion7        | 0.405          | 0 400          | 0.41.6         | 0 40 5         | 0.41.5         | 0.460          | 0.460          | 0.000          | 0 400          |
| criter      | 0.437          | 0.432          | 0.416          | 0.437          | 0.415          | 0.468          | 0.469          | 0.326          | 0.422          |
| 1018        | 0.470          | 0 4 4 7        | 0.407          | 0.460          | 0.400          | 0.46           | 0 472          | 0.401          | 0.046          |
| criter      | 0.478          | 0.447          | 0.427          | 0.463          | 0.422          | 0.46           | 0.473          | 0.421          | 0.346          |
| <u>1019</u> |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |

# • The threshold value

By using step 10, in this Design, the threshold value is equal to 0.4720.472

#### Table 19:

The crisp total- relationships matrix by considering the threshold value-Design 3

|                  |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                | 57             |
|------------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|
|                  | criter<br>ion1 | criter<br>ion2 | criter<br>ion3 | criter<br>ion4 | criter<br>ion5 | criter<br>ion6 | criter<br>ion7 | criter<br>ion8 | criter<br>ion9 |
| criter           | 0              | 0.508          | 0.489          | 0.509          | 0              | 0.539          | 0.562          | 0              | 0.473          |
| ion1             |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter           | 0.508          | 0              | 0              | 0.516          | 0              | 0.528          | 0.513          | 0              | 0              |
| ion2             |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |
| criter           | 0.489          | 0              | 0              | 0.504          | 0              | 0.524          | 0.519          | 0              | 0              |
| ion3             |                |                |                |                |                |                |                |                | 0              |
| criter           | 0.511          | 0.518          | 0.502          | 0              | 0              | 0.539          | 0.542          | 0              | 0              |
| ion4             | · · · · ·      | 0              | 0              |                | 0              | 0.400          |                | 0              | 0              |
| criter           | 0.475          | 0              | 0              | 0.472          | 0              | 0.499          | 0.509          | 0              | 0              |
| 10n5             | 0.522          | 0 5 1 0        | 0.510          | 0.520          | 0.400          | 0              | 0.50           | 0              | 0              |
| criter           | 0.533          | 0.518          | 0.512          | 0.529          | 0.489          | 0              | 0.56           | 0              | 0              |
| lono             | 0 562          | 0.517          | 0.512          | 0.54           | 0.504          | 0 567          | 0              | 0              | 0              |
| criter           | 0.362          | 0.317          | 0.312          | 0.34           | 0.304          | 0.307          | 0              | 0              | 0              |
| 1011 /<br>critor | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              |
| ion8             | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              |
| criter           | 0 478          | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0              | 0 473          | 0              | 0              |
| ion9             | 0, ד, 0        | U              | v              | v              | U              | v              | 0.775          | v              | Ū              |

# • Final output and causal relation diagram

By using step 11 equation (8) and (9) the table below shows the final output and causal relation diagram for Design 3

#### Table 20:

|            | R     | D     | D+R   | D-R    |
|------------|-------|-------|-------|--------|
| criterion1 | 4.428 | 4.414 | 8.843 | -0.014 |
| criterion2 | 4.262 | 4.245 | 8.507 | -0.018 |
| criterion3 | 4.172 | 4.195 | 8.367 | 0.024  |
| criterion4 | 4.404 | 4.409 | 8.813 | 0.006  |
| criterion5 | 4.055 | 4.083 | 8.138 | 0.028  |
| criterion6 | 4.583 | 4.508 | 9.091 | -0.075 |
| criterion7 | 4.618 | 4.605 | 9.224 | -0.013 |
| criterion8 | 3.785 | 3.821 | 7.606 | 0.036  |
| criterion9 | 3.911 | 3.937 | 7.848 | 0.026  |

# 4.2.4 Design 4 Acknowledgments, Competition, and Time Pressure (ACT)

|          | Ewisely<br>Fost Rosult   | Remedial Mega Study  | Spin Wheel                 | Remedi              | al Mega Test                   | ed Test Result |
|----------|--|--|----------------------------|---------------------|--------------------------------|----------------|
|          | Test Result 🕞 Test Name : Demo Test  | Subject: Electronics   | ressure                    | Acknow              | ledgements                     | View All ->    |
|          | Tour Score   | Remedial Timer   | O 21                       | 1 50                | Data Structure                 | 103            |
|          | 63/100 B+  | 23:59:59   | Total Time<br>Spent By You | Your<br>Class Rank  | C++                            | 50%            |
|          | Improve your test score by 3 marks/points by taking a small remedial test. | Fluke 10%  | 79%                        | <b>№ 10</b>         | Algorithms                     | 50%            |
|          | Start Remedial Process   | <ul> <li>50% fluke disqualifies you from taking<br/>remedial path</li> </ul> | Average<br>Performance     | Unanswered<br>Count |                                |                |
| 💌 Questi | ionnaire   | Co   | mpetition 🗲                | View Results →      | Leader Board<br>1. 🔮 Neha Puri | *** 89%        |
| 1 2      | 3 4 5 6 7 8 9  | 10 11 12 13 14 1   | 5 16 17                    | 18 19 20            | 2. 🚺 Kartik Punya              | *** 89%        |
|          |  |  |                            |                     | 3. 🧕 Amita Jha                 | *** 89%        |

### **Constructing the Initial Direct-Relation Matrix:**

The initial direct-relation matrix is constructed by averaging the TFNs provided by all decision-makers for each criterion pair. The TFNs from each DM are combined using the following equations:

| Combined $L_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} L_{ij}^k$ | (1) |
|---|-----|
| Combined $M_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} M_{ij}^k$ | (2) |
| Combined $U_{ij} = \frac{1}{25} \sum_{k=1}^{25} U_{ij}^k$ | (3) |
| Example Calculation:                                      |     |

If three DMs provided the following evaluations for the influence of Criterion 1 on Criterion 2:

- DM1: High (0.5, 0.75, 1)
- DM2: Low (0.25, 0.5, 0.75)
- DM3: Very High (0.75, 1, 1)

The combined TFN for Criterion 1 on Criterion 2 is calculated as:

58

Combined 
$$L_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.5 + 0.25 + 0.75) = 0.5$$
  
Combined  $M_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(0.75 + 0.5 + 1) = 0.75$   
Combined  $U_{1,2} = \frac{1}{3}(1 + 0.75 + 1) = 0.9167$ 

# Sample Evaluation Matrix for Decision Maker:

Here is a sample evaluation matrix converted to triangular fuzzy numbers for one decision maker:

| Criteria  | Criterion  | Criterion  | Criterion  |
|-----------|------------|------------|------------|
|           | 1          | 2          | 3          |
| Criterion | (0, 0, 0)  | (0.5,      | (0.25,     |
| 1         |            | 0.75, 1)   | 0.5, 0.75) |
| Criterion | (0, 0.25,  | (0, 0, 0)  | (0.75, 1,  |
| 2         | 0.5)       |            | 1)         |
| Criterion | (0.25,     | (0.25,     | (0, 0, 0)  |
| 3         | 0.5, 0.75) | 0.5, 0.75) |            |

Sample Evaluation Matrix:

#### • Direct- relation matrix

By using step 6 equation (4) the table below indicates the direct relation matrix, which is the same as pairwise comparison matrix of the decision makers in the design 4.

# Table 21:

The direct relation matrix- Design 4

|      | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | (0.000, | (0.390, | (0.300, | (0.390, | (0.370, | (0.290, | (0.490, | (0.180, | (0.350, |
| eri  | 0.000,  | 0.610,  | 0.500,  | 0.620,  | 0.600,  | 0.470,  | 0.740,  | 0.360,  | 0.560,  |
| on   | 0.000)  | 0.780)  | 0.670)  | 0.800)  | 0.810)  | 0.680)  | 0.890)  | 0.590)  | 0.750)  |
| 1    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.390, | (0.000, | (0.220, | (0.460, | (0.210, | (0.380, | (0.270, | (0.180, | (0.260, |
| eri  | 0.610,  | 0.000,  | 0.420,  | 0.680,  | 0.410,  | 0.600,  | 0.450,  | 0.390,  | 0.470,  |
| on   | 0.780)  | 0.000)  | 0.660)  | 0.820)  | 0.640)  | 0.780)  | 0.680)  | 0.630)  | 0.690)  |
| 2    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.300, | (0.220, | (0.000, | (0.390, | (0.270, | (0.390, | (0.350, | (0.250, | (0.180, |

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 60      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| eri  | 0.500,  | 0.420,  | 0.000,  | 0.590,  | 0.450,  | 0.590,  | 0.580,  | 0.470,  | 0.350,  |
| on   | 0.670)  | 0.660)  | 0.000)  | 0.760)  | 0.690)  | 0.760)  | 0.760)  | 0.690)  | 0.570)  |
| 3    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.390, | (0.460, | (0.390, | (0.000, | (0.270, | (0.400, | (0.420, | (0.270, | (0.230, |
| eri  | 0.620,  | 0.680,  | 0.590,  | 0.000,  | 0.450,  | 0.620,  | 0.660,  | 0.490,  | 0.420,  |
| on   | 0.800)  | 0.820)  | 0.760)  | 0.000)  | 0.650)  | 0.790)  | 0.820)  | 0.710)  | 0.640)  |
| 4    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.370, | (0.210, | (0.270, | (0.250, | (0.000, | (0.370, | (0.300, | (0.270, | (0.230, |
| eri  | 0.600,  | 0.410,  | 0.450,  | 0.430,  | 0.000,  | 0.600,  | 0.550,  | 0.460,  | 0.390,  |
| on   | 0.810)  | 0.640)  | 0.690)  | 0.650)  | 0.000)  | 0.810)  | 0.750)  | 0.710)  | 0.600)  |
| 5    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.290, | (0.380, | (0.390, | (0.400, | (0.370, | (0.000, | (0.460, | (0.240, | (0.270, |
| eri  | 0.470,  | 0.600,  | 0.590,  | 0.620,  | 0.600,  | 0.000,  | 0.690,  | 0.450,  | 0.490,  |
| on   | 0.680)  | 0.780)  | 0.760)  | 0.790)  | 0.810)  | 0.000)  | 0.890)  | 0.660)  | 0.680)  |
| 6    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.490, | (0.270, | (0.350, | (0.420, | (0.300, | (0.470, | (0.000, | (0.360, | (0.270, |
| eri  | 0.740,  | 0.450,  | 0.580,  | 0.660,  | 0.550,  | 0.700,  | 0.000,  | 0.590,  | 0.460,  |
| on   | 0.890)  | 0.680)  | 0.760)  | 0.820)  | 0.750)  | 0.890)  | 0.000)  | 0.780)  | 0.650)  |
| 7    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.180, | (0.180, | (0.250, | (0.270, | (0.270, | (0.240, | (0.360, | (0.000, | (0.250, |
| eri  | 0.360,  | 0.390,  | 0.470,  | 0.490,  | 0.460,  | 0.450,  | 0.590,  | 0.000,  | 0.400,  |
| on   | 0.590)  | 0.630)  | 0.690)  | 0.710)  | 0.710)  | 0.660)  | 0.780)  | 0.000)  | 0.590)  |
| 8    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | (0.350, | (0.260, | (0.180, | (0.230, | (0.230, | (0.270, | (0.270, | (0.250, | (0.000, |
| eri  | 0.560,  | 0.470,  | 0.350,  | 0.420,  | 0.390,  | 0.490,  | 0.460,  | 0.400,  | 0.000,  |
| on   | 0.750)  | 0.690)  | 0.570)  | 0.640)  | 0.600)  | 0.680)  | 0.650)  | 0.590)  | 0.000)  |
| 9    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

# • Normalize the fuzzy direct-relation matrix

By using step 7 equation (5) the table below shows the normalized fuzzy direct-relation matrix of design 4

# Table 22:

| The normalized juzzy direct-relation matrix-Design | The norma | lized fuzz | v direct-rela | ation matrix | -Design. |
|--|-----------|------------|---------------|--------------|----------|
|--|-----------|------------|---------------|--------------|----------|

|      | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | 0.000,) | 0.063,) | 0.048,) | 0.063,) | 0.059,) | 0.047,) | 0.079,) | 0.029,) | 0.056,) |
| eri  | 0.000,  | 0.098,  | 0.080,  | 0.100,  | 0.096,  | 0.076,  | 0.119,  | 0.058,  | 0.090,  |
| on   | (0.000  | (0.125  | (0.108  | (0.129  | (0.130  | (0.109  | (0.143  | (0.095  | (0.121  |
| 1    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.063,) | 0.000,) | 0.035,) | 0.074,) | 0.034,) | 0.061,) | 0.043,) | 0.029,) | 0.042,) |
| eri  | 0.098,  | 0.000,  | 0.068,  | 0.109,  | 0.066,  | 0.096,  | 0.072,  | 0.063,  | 0.076,  |
| on   | (0.125  | (0.000  | (0.106  | (0.132  | (0.103  | (0.125  | (0.109  | (0.101  | (0.111  |
| 2    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.048,) | 0.035,) | 0.000,) | 0.063,) | 0.043,) | 0.063,) | 0.056,) | 0.040,) | 0.029,) |
| eri  | 0.080,  | 0.068,  | 0.000,  | 0.095,  | 0.072,  | 0.095,  | 0.093,  | 0.076,  | 0.056,  |

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 61      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| on   | (0.108  | (0.106  | (0.000  | (0.122  | (0.111  | (0.122  | (0.122  | (0.111  | (0.092  |
| 3    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.063,) | 0.074,) | 0.063,) | 0.000,) | 0.043,) | 0.064,) | 0.068,) | 0.043,) | 0.037,) |
| eri  | 0.100,  | 0.109,  | 0.095,  | 0.000,  | 0.072,  | 0.100,  | 0.106,  | 0.079,  | 0.068,  |
| on   | (0.129  | (0.132  | (0.122  | (0.000) | (0.105  | (0.127  | (0.132  | (0.114  | (0.103  |
| 4    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.059,) | 0.034,) | 0.043,) | 0.040,) | 0.000,) | 0.059,) | 0.048,) | 0.043,) | 0.037,) |
| eri  | 0.096,  | 0.066,  | 0.072,  | 0.069,  | 0.000,  | 0.096,  | 0.088,  | 0.074,  | 0.063,  |
| on   | (0.130  | (0.103  | (0.111  | (0.105  | (0.000  | (0.130  | (0.121  | (0.114  | (0.096  |
| 5    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.047,) | 0.061,) | 0.063,) | 0.064,) | 0.059,) | 0.000,) | 0.074,) | 0.039,) | 0.043,) |
| eri  | 0.076,  | 0.096,  | 0.095,  | 0.100,  | 0.096,  | 0.000,  | 0.111,  | 0.072,  | 0.079,  |
| on   | (0.109  | (0.125  | (0.122  | (0.127  | (0.130  | (0.000) | (0.143  | (0.106  | (0.109  |
| 6    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.079,) | 0.043,) | 0.056,) | 0.068,) | 0.048,) | 0.076,) | 0.000,) | 0.058,) | 0.043,) |
| eri  | 0.119,  | 0.072,  | 0.093,  | 0.106,  | 0.088,  | 0.113,  | 0.000,  | 0.095,  | 0.074,  |
| on   | (0.143  | (0.109  | (0.122  | (0.132  | (0.121  | (0.143  | (0.000) | (0.125  | (0.105  |
| 7    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.029,) | 0.029,) | 0.040,) | 0.043,) | 0.043,) | 0.039,) | 0.058,) | 0.000,) | 0.040,) |
| eri  | 0.058,  | 0.063,  | 0.076,  | 0.079,  | 0.074,  | 0.072,  | 0.095,  | 0.000,  | 0.064,  |
| on   | (0.095  | (0.101  | (0.111  | (0.114  | (0.114  | (0.106  | (0.125  | (0.000) | (0.095  |
| 8    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |
| crit | 0.056,) | 0.042,) | 0.029,) | 0.037,) | 0.037,) | 0.043,) | 0.043,) | 0.040,) | 0.000,) |
| eri  | 0.090,  | 0.076,  | 0.056,  | 0.068,  | 0.063,  | 0.079,  | 0.074,  | 0.064,  | 0.000,  |
| on   | (0.121  | (0.111  | (0.092  | (0.103  | (0.096  | (0.109  | (0.105  | (0.095  | (0.000) |
| 9    |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |

# • Fuzzy total-relation matrix

By using step 8 equation (6) the table below shows the fuzzy total-relation matrix of design 4

Table 23:

The fuzzy total-relation matrix- Design 4

|      | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|      | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| crit | (0.041, | (0.094, | (0.080, | (0.100, | (0.089, | (0.085, | (0.115, | (0.058, | (0.083, |
| eri  | 0.181,  | 0.254,  | 0.236,  | 0.273,  | 0.247,  | 0.253,  | 0.296,  | 0.203,  | 0.228,  |
| on1  | 1.380)  | 1.430)  | 1.392)  | 1.498)  | 1.430)  | 1.495)  | 1.556)  | 1.338)  | 1.318)  |
| crit | (0.094, | (0.031, | (0.065, | (0.105, | (0.062, | (0.093, | (0.079, | (0.053, | (0.066, |
| eri  | 0.254,  | 0.151,  | 0.211,  | 0.265,  | 0.208,  | 0.254,  | 0.241,  | 0.193,  | 0.203,  |
| on2  | 1.430)  | 1.261)  | 1.334)  | 1.440)  | 1.351)  | 1.446)  | 1.467)  | 1.288)  | 1.257)  |
| crit | (0.080, | (0.065, | (0.030, | (0.094, | (0.070, | (0.094, | (0.090, | (0.064, | (0.054, |
| eri  | 0.236,  | 0.211,  | 0.145,  | 0.250,  | 0.211,  | 0.250,  | 0.256,  | 0.203,  | 0.183,  |
| on3  | 1.392)  | 1.334)  | 1.216)  | 1.408)  | 1.335)  | 1.419)  | 1.453)  | 1.274)  | 1.220)  |
| crit | (0.100, | (0.105, | (0.094, | (0.042, | (0.076, | (0.102, | (0.106, | (0.071, | (0.066, |
| eri  | 0.274,  | 0.266,  | 0.251,  | 0.186,  | 0.230,  | 0.276,  | 0.289,  | 0.223,  | 0.211,  |

|      |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         | 62      |
|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| on4  | 1.498)  | 1.440)  | 1.408)  | 1.389)  | 1.414)  | 1.513)  | 1.552)  | 1.357)  | 1.308)  |
| crit | (0.089, | (0.061, | (0.070, | (0.072, | (0.028, | (0.089, | (0.081, | (0.065, | (0.060, |
| eri  | 0.246,  | 0.207,  | 0.210,  | 0.225,  | 0.141,  | 0.248,  | 0.249,  | 0.199,  | 0.187,  |
| on5  | 1.430)  | 1.351)  | 1.335)  | 1.414)  | 1.255)  | 1.446)  | 1.473)  | 1.295)  | 1.242)  |
| crit | (0.085, | (0.093, | (0.094, | (0.102, | (0.090, | (0.041, | (0.111, | (0.067, | (0.071, |
| eri  | 0.253,  | 0.253,  | 0.250,  | 0.275,  | 0.249,  | 0.184,  | 0.291,  | 0.217,  | 0.219,  |
| on6  | 1.495)  | 1.446)  | 1.419)  | 1.513)  | 1.446)  | 1.413)  | 1.574)  | 1.362)  | 1.323)  |
| crit | (0.115, | (0.079, | (0.090, | (0.106, | (0.082, | (0.113, | (0.045, | (0.085, | (0.073, |
| eri  | 0.296,  | 0.241,  | 0.256,  | 0.288,  | 0.250,  | 0.293,  | 0.201,  | 0.242,  | 0.222,  |
| on7  | 1.556)  | 1.467)  | 1.453)  | 1.552)  | 1.473)  | 1.574)  | 1.486)  | 1.410)  | 1.351)  |
| crit | (0.058, | (0.053, | (0.064, | (0.071, | (0.066, | (0.067, | (0.085, | (0.022, | (0.060, |
| eri  | 0.203,  | 0.193,  | 0.203,  | 0.222,  | 0.200,  | 0.217,  | 0.242,  | 0.122,  | 0.179,  |
| on8  | 1.338)  | 1.288)  | 1.274)  | 1.357)  | 1.295)  | 1.362)  | 1.410)  | 1.135)  | 1.184)  |
| crit | (0.083, | (0.066, | (0.054, | (0.066, | (0.060, | (0.071, | (0.073, | (0.060, | (0.022, |
| eri  | 0.228,  | 0.203,  | 0.183,  | 0.210,  | 0.188,  | 0.219,  | 0.222,  | 0.179,  | 0.117,  |
| on9  | 1.318)  | 1.257)  | 1.220)  | 1.308)  | 1.242)  | 1.323)  | 1.351)  | 1.184)  | 1.063)  |

• **Defuzzifying into crisp values** By using step 9 equation (7) the table below shows crisp total-relation matrix of design 4

| Table 2 |
|---------|
|---------|

*The crisp total-relation matrix- Design 4* 

| -        | 1110 01       | isp ioitii | i crarron n |         | corgii i |         |         |         |         |
|----------|---------------|------------|-------------|---------|----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|          | criteri       | criteri    | criteri     | criteri | criteri  | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|          | on1           | on2        | on3         | on4     | on5      | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| criteri  | 0.386         | 0.45       | 0.429       | 0.477   | 0.445    | 0.461   | 0.504   | 0.394   | 0.409   |
| on1      |               |            |             |         |          |         |         |         |         |
| Contir   | nue (24)      |            |             |         |          |         |         |         |         |
| criterio | <b>n2</b> 0.4 | 52 0.34    | 2 0.401     | 0.463   | 0.401    | 0.455   | 0.448   | 0.379   | 0.381   |
| criterio | <b>n3</b> 0.4 | 32 0.40    | 0.33        | 0.446   | 0.402    | 0.449   | 0.458   | 0.385   | 0.36    |
| criterio | <b>n4</b> 0.4 | 77 0.46    | 0.444       | 0.391   | 0.428    | 0.482   | 0.497   | 0.412   | 0.394   |
| criterio | n5 0.4        | 47 0.40    | 0.401       | 0.427   | 0.333    | 0.451   | 0.455   | 0.385   | 0.367   |
| criterio | <b>n6</b> 0.4 | 6 0.45     | 0.444       | 0.48    | 0.448    | 0.394   | 0.502   | 0.408   | 0.403   |
| criterio | <b>n7</b> 0.5 | 03 0.44    | 5 0.454     | 0.496   | 0.452    | 0.504   | 0.418   | 0.435   | 0.409   |
| criterio | <b>n8</b> 0.3 | 97 0.3     | 8 0.386     | 0.416   | 0.387    | 0.413   | 0.44    | 0.298   | 0.352   |
| criterio | <b>n9</b> 0.4 | 15 0.38    | 0.362       | 0.399   | 0.37     | 0.409   | 0.415   | 0.353   | 0.282   |

#### • The threshold value

By using step 10, in this Design, the threshold value is equal to 0.4190.419

#### Table 25:

The crisp total- relationships matrix by considering the threshold value-4

| D ·     |   |
|---------|---|
| 1)00100 | 4 |
| DUSIEN  |   |

|         | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri | criteri |
|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
|         | on1     | on2     | on3     | on4     | on5     | on6     | on7     | on8     | on9     |
| criteri | 0       | 0.45    | 0.429   | 0.477   | 0.445   | 0.461   | 0.504   | 0       | 0       |

|                 |       |       |       |         |       |       |       |       | 63 |  |
|-----------------|-------|-------|-------|---------|-------|-------|-------|-------|----|--|
| on1             |       | _     | _     |         | _     |       |       | _     | _  |  |
| criteri         | 0.452 | 0     | 0     | 0.463   | 0     | 0.455 | 0.448 | 0     | 0  |  |
| on2<br>criteri  | 0.432 | 0     | 0     | 0.446   | 0     | 0.449 | 0.458 | 0     | 0  |  |
| on3             |       | -     | -     |         | -     |       |       | -     | -  |  |
| criteri         | 0.477 | 0.461 | 0.444 | 0       | 0.428 | 0.482 | 0.497 | 0     | 0  |  |
| on4<br>oritori  | 0 447 | 0     | 0     | 0 427   | 0     | 0.451 | 0.455 | 0     | 0  |  |
| on5             | 0.447 | 0     | 0     | 0.427   | 0     | 0.431 | 0.433 | 0     | 0  |  |
| criteri         | 0.46  | 0.451 | 0.444 | 0.48    | 0.448 | 0     | 0.502 | 0     | 0  |  |
| on6             |       |       |       | · · · · |       |       |       |       |    |  |
| criteri         | 0.503 | 0.445 | 0.454 | 0.496   | 0.452 | 0.504 | 0     | 0.435 | 0  |  |
| 0n /<br>criteri | 0     | 0     | 0     | 0       | 0     | 0     | 0 44  | 0     | 0  |  |
| on8             | 0     | 0     | 0     | 0       | 0     | 0     | 0.11  | 0     | 0  |  |
| criteri         | 0     | 0     | 0     | 0       | 0     | 0     | 0     | 0     | 0  |  |
| on9             |       |       |       |         |       |       |       |       |    |  |

• Final output and causal relation diagram By using step 11 equation (8) and (9) the table shows the final output and causal relation diagram for Design 4

# Table 26:

*The final output – Design 4* 

|            | R     | D     | D+R   | D-R    |
|------------|-------|-------|-------|--------|
| criterion1 | 3.971 | 3.955 | 7.926 | -0.016 |
| criterion2 | 3.715 | 3.724 | 7.438 | 0.009  |
| criterion3 | 3.651 | 3.663 | 7.314 | 0.012  |
| criterion4 | 3.996 | 3.987 | 7.983 | -0.009 |
| criterion5 | 3.667 | 3.666 | 7.334 | -0.001 |
| criterion6 | 4.018 | 3.992 | 8.01  | -0.026 |
| criterion7 | 4.137 | 4.117 | 8.254 | -0.021 |
| criterion8 | 3.45  | 3.47  | 6.919 | 0.02   |
| criterion9 | 3.356 | 3.388 | 6.744 | 0.032  |

# 4.5 Cause-effect diagram for each design

# Figure 7:

Cause-effect diagram- Design 1



# Figure 8:

Cause-effect diagram- Design 2



# Figure 9:

Cause-effect diagram- Design 3



#### Figure 10:

Cause-effect diagram- Design 4



#### **CHAPTER V**

#### DISCUSSION

The evaluation of the four gamified recommender system designs using the Fuzzy DEMATEL method has produced insightful results about the impact and influence of different criteria. The criteria used for evaluation were Effectiveness (C1), Transparency (C2), Persuasiveness (C3), User Satisfaction (C4), Trust (C5), Usefulness (C6), Ease of Use (C7), Efficiency (C8), and Education (C9). The results indicate varying degrees of influence and causality among these criteria.

### 5.1 Key Criteria Insights

#### 1. Ease of Use (C7):

Highest Importance and Effect: Ease of Use is considered the most important outcome with a total importance (D+R) of 8. 254 while the D-R is 0. 021 thus making it an effect. This presupposes that, even if it highly impacts

user experience to a considerable extent, it is also affected by other factors. The high importance suggests that users appreciate ease and simplicity in the interfaces of gamified systems, going by the Essence. Design 4 scored the highest in this criterion with a score of 8.3

# 2. Usefulness (C6):

High Importance and Effect: Another equally important criteria is Usefulness (C6) which also has a high combined mean of two halves (D+R) = 8. 01 and is an effect, (D-R) = -0. 026. This means that the usability that these users would find in this system and how functional the system is in their day to day use is paramount for their acceptance of the system and satisfaction. Design 3 scored the highest in this criterion with a score of 8.1

### 3. User Satisfaction (C4):

Crucial for Success: With a (D+R) value of 7. 983, User Satisfaction (C4) is another criterion which has been identified as important. It is crucial for the system's performance and is classed as an effect (D-R = -0. 009) thus being influenced by other factors such as Ease of Use and Usefulness. Design 1 led in this criterion with a score of 8.7.

# 4. Effectiveness (C1):

Significant Influence: Effectiveness (C1), is a significant criterion with a (D+R) value of 7. 926. This criterion indicates that the effectiveness of the system should be vital in assisting users make sound decisions regarding the extensive selection. It is also an effect (D-R = -0. 016+), and is influenced by other criteria such as Transparency and Persuasiveness. Design 1 showed the highest effectiveness with a score of 8.5.

#### 5. Trust (C5):

Important for User Confidence: Trust (C5) is significant to achieve the acknowledgement of the users and has a total D+R of (7. 901), and the study considered it an effect because the (D-R) value was equal to -0. 014. High trust levels ensure that those involved in utilizing the system feel safe and assured with the recommendations of the system. Design 2 scored the highest in this criterion with a score of 7.9.

## 6. Transparency (C2):

Critical for Understanding: Transparency (C2) has a combined (D + R) value of 7.765 and classified as a causal variable. It affects the other criteria like Trust (C5) and the Effectiveness (C1). Consumers have always acknowledged promptly evident and easily comprehensible decisions made within systems. Design 2 was rated highest in transparency with a score of 7.8.

# 7. Persuasiveness (C3):

Effective in Influencing: Persuasiveness (C3) with a D+R value of 7.750, is a causal criterion. It influences user decisions and satisfaction. Design 3 excelled in this criterion with a score of 8.2.

# 8. Efficiency (C8):

Impact on Performance: Efficiency (C8) has a D+R value of 7.689, and as a causal criterion, it impacts overall system performance and User Satisfaction (C4). Design 1 was identified as the most efficient with a score of 8.4.

# 9. Education (C9):

• **Ease of Understanding**: Education (C9) is an important criterion with a D+R value of 7.610, thus ensuring that users can quickly understand and effectively use the system. It is a causal criterion influencing Ease of Use (C7). Design 4 also scored highest in learnability with a score of 8.4.

# 5.2 Design-wise Insights

# 1. Design - 1 Points, Acknowledgments, and Competition (PBL):

- Overall Performance: Design 1 scored highest in several key criteria including effectiveness (8.5), user satisfaction (8.7), and efficiency (8.4). It provides a balanced approach, excelling in helping users make good decisions quickly and efficiently. It is ideal for scenarios where overall system performance and user satisfaction are critical.
- 2. Design 2 Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Progression (AOP):
  - Understanding and Confidence: Design 2 performed best in transparency (7.8) and trust (7.9). It is particularly suitable for users who value a clear understanding of how recommendations are generated and need confidence in the system's reliability. It shows the importance of trust and transparency in enhancing user confidence.
- 3. Design 3 Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Social Pressure (AOS):

- Influence and Utility: Design 3 excelled in persuasiveness (8.2) and usefulness (8.1). It effectively influences user decisions and provides highly relevant recommendations, making it suitable for applications where influencing user behaviour and providing practical utility are paramount.
- 4. Design 4 Acknowledgments, Competition, and Time Pressure (ACT):
  - Simplicity and Accessibility: Design 4 was rated highest in ease of use (8.3) and Education (8.4). It is the easiest to navigate and understand, making it suitable for novice users or those who prioritize simplicity and straightforward interfaces. This design is ideal for enhancing user experience through simplicity and ease of learning.

#### 5.3 Comparative Analysis

Effectiveness (C1), Transparency (C2), Persuasiveness (C3), User Satisfaction (C4), Trust (C5), Usefulness (C6), Ease of Use (C7), Efficiency (C8), and Education (C9).

The criteria as listed above provides links, outlined interrelationships in the designs. A comparison of these criteria, highlights the fundamental characteristics of each and the cause and effect relationship. Identifying the causal variables; Transparency, Persuasiveness, Efficiency and Education enables a deeper understanding of the complex relationships. Results from the designs indicate different blends of the various criteria to achieve the design priority.

Assuming the results of this study, it becomes clear that ease of use and usefulness remain the most significant and constantly addressed factors, influencing the usage of gamified systems. Ease of use and usefulness determines that the user is confident that using the gamified system will be easier and practical. Practical in the sense that the system will be effective, efficient and satisfactory. They in effect govern the use and adoption of the system. (Alsawaier, 2018; Talhaoui et al., 2019; Lewis and Sauro, 2021). This aligns with the high

importance placed on these criteria in our study. Furthermore, the critical role of user satisfaction echoes findings from Hamari et al. (2014), who emphasize the need for engaging and rewarding user experiences in gamified applications. In terms of education, ease of use and utility have been known to majorly influence student motivation. In a context of limited resources, ease of use in education becomes very important in achieving optimization (Liesa-Orús et al, 2022).

Efficiency measures the best value for money whilst Education affects. Education has a pivotal role as an influencer, a purposeful activity. Education potentially increases user engagement (Triantafyllou 2022), and positively influences trust (Volchik and Maslyukova, 2019). Education requires effectiveness for acceptability.

Trust also influences experience since it influences the intention to provide feedback. Trust further affects user satisfaction from trust in both the competence and integrity of the system. As trust increases so does the intention to adopt the system (Knijnenburg et al, 2011).

The identification of Transparency and Persuasiveness as causal variables highlights the importance of clear communication and motivational elements in influencing user trust and satisfaction. Transparency underscores full access to required information, whilst persuasiveness encourages the adoption and maintenance of beneficial behaviours and attitudes. Persuasiveness has the potential to change minds and attitudes. Education as a causal variable, can greatly affect persuasiveness, especially through communication. This is supported by studies such as those by González-González et al. (2019) Zeel (2010) and Su (2017), which underline the necessity of transparent operations and persuasive design in enhancing user engagement and trust. Transparency is also key in developing trust in the system.

#### **5.4 Limitations**

#### • Sample Size and Diversity

There are several limitations that can be associated with this study, but, perhaps, the most significant one is the limited number of samples obtained and assessed with reference to 25 DMs only. Even though this number is enough for
an initial analysis It might not properly reflect the range of opinions and preferences of a larger user group.

#### • Subjectivity of Evaluations

Thus, the assessment of the given designs is also qualitative in nature, as it results from perceived experiences of the DMs. Although, the use of fuzzy logic aids in reducing the degree of subjectivity in that a range of values of the variable is given, yet the results turn out to be relative to a given persons' bias or preference.

#### • Generalizability of Gamified Designs

The specific gamified designs that were evaluated in this study might not be directly portable to other environment and for other users. The designs were evaluated in accordance with a certain set of criteria and user needs, which may be different in other applications. Therefore, any generalizations of the outcomes from this study should only be done with consideration of other designs.

#### • Criteria Weighting and Importance

A key component of the multi-criteria decision-making (MCDM) method employed in this study is the weighting of criteria according to their significance. However, as the selected DMs determine the weights, they might not fully represent the preferences of all possible users. As a result, the relative weight of the criteria may vary over time or among various user groups.

#### • Limited Scope of Criteria

The study focused on a specific set of criteria, which are ease of use, usefulness, user satisfaction, effectiveness, transparency, persuasiveness, trust, efficiency, and education. While these criteria are important, there are other criteria, that were not considered.

#### **CHAPTER VI**

#### **CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS**

#### 6.1 Conclusion

This study used the Fuzzy DEMATEL approach to assess four different gamified recommender system designs, concentrating on nine important criteria. The results show that the key criteria affecting the adoption of these systems are Ease of Use, Usefulness, User Satisfaction, and Effectiveness. The causal variables which are transparency, persuasiveness, efficiency, trust and education greatly influence these criteria. The findings highlight the necessity for developers to give priority to effective and user-friendly designs while maintaining transparency and persuasiveness in order to increase satisfaction and trust. The interaction of these criteria brings to light the intricate dynamics that need to be controlled in order to develop gamified recommender systems that are both efficient and entertaining.

#### 6.2 Recommendations

#### 1. Enhance User Interface Design:

Prioritize developing user-friendly designs that are simple to use in order to increase ease of use and, in turn, user satisfaction.

#### 2. Increase Practical Value:

Ensure that the system offers significant practical benefits to users, therefore increasing its Usefulness and overall effectiveness.

#### 3. Improve Transparency:

Clearly explain how recommendations are made to build trust and enhance user confidence in the system.

#### 4. Incorporate Persuasive Elements:

Use motivational techniques to encourage user engagement and investment in the system.

#### 5. Optimize Efficiency:

Develop algorithms and processes that enhance the system's efficiency, ensuring quick and accurate recommendations.

#### 6. Focus on Educational Value:

Design the system to provide educational benefits, helping users learn from their interactions and recommendations.

#### 6.3 Recommendations for Future Research

#### 1. Longitudinal Studies:

More accurate and precise data will be produced by long-term research in which users engage with the gamified recommender systems over a prolonged period of time. This approach makes it possible to track changes in user satisfaction and behavior over time.

#### 2. Diverse User Groups:

Explore the effectiveness of these systems across different user groups and contexts to understand varying needs and preferences.

#### 3. Advanced Gamification Techniques:

Investigate the use of advanced gamification techniques, such as adaptive and personalized gamification, to enhance user engagement and system effectiveness.

### 4. Broaden the Scope of Gamification Elements:

Future research should explore a wider range of gamification elements. Therefore, understanding the impact of additional elements might provide a more comprehensive view of how gamification can enhance recommender systems.

#### 5. Exploration of AI and Machine Learning:

Introduce artificial intelligence (AI) and machine learning algorithms to personalize gamified elements based on individual user preferences and behaviors. Future research and studies should explore how these technologies can improve user engagement and satisfaction.

#### 6. User Behavior Analysis:

Conduct detailed analysis of user behavior and interaction patterns with the gamified recommender systems. Understanding how users interact with different gamified elements to inform the design of more effective systems.

#### 7. Design Evaluation:

The gamified designs evaluated in this study are hypothetical and were assessed based on participants' responses to the questionnaire. While these initial evaluations provide valuable insights into potential user preferences and engagement factors, it is important to conduct real-life evaluations of these designs in future research. Implementing and testing these designs in practical settings will help to validate their effectiveness and identify any necessary improvements.

#### REFERENCES

- Akhriza, T. M., & Mumpuni, I. D. (2020). Gamification of the Lecturer Career Promotion System with a Recommender System. 2020 Fifth International Conference on Informatics and Computing (ICIC). https://doi.org/10.1109/icic50835.2020.9288541
- Alahmadi, D. H., & Jamjoom, A. A. (2022). Decision support system for handling control decisions and decision-maker related to supply chain. *Journal of Big Data*, 9(1). <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s40537-022-00653-9</u>
- Alshamsi, A. M., El-Kassabi, H., Serhani, M. A., & Bouhaddioui, C. (2023). A multicriteria decision-making (MCDM) approach for data-driven distance learning recommendations. *Education and Information Technologies*, 28(8), 10421– 10458. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10639-023-11589-9
- Alsawaier, R. S. (2018). The effect of gamification on motivation and engagement. In International Journal of Information and Learning Technology (Vol. 35, Issue 1, pp. 56–79). Emerald Group Publishing Ltd. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/IJILT-02-2017-0009</u>
- Altinirmak, S., Ergün, M., & Karamaşa, Ç. (2017). Implementation of the Fuzzy Dematel method in higher education course selection: the case of Eskişehir Vocational School. *DergiPark (Istanbul University)*. https://dergipark.org.tr/tr/pub/ataunisosbil/issue/34383/381010
- Beheshti, A., Yakhchi, S., Mousaeirad, S., Ghafari, S. M., Goluguri, S. R., & Edrisi, M. A. (2020). Towards cognitive recommender systems. *Algorithms*, 13(8). https://doi.org/10.3390/A13080176
- Champiri, Z. D., Mujtaba, G., Salim, S. S., & Chong, C. Y. (2019). User experience and recommender systems. 2019 2nd International Conference on Computing, Mathematics and Engineering Technologies (iCoMET). https://doi.org/10.1109/icomet.2019.8673410
- Chen, X., Zhang, Y., & Wen, J.-R. (2022). *Measuring "Why" in Recommender* Systems: a Comprehensive Survey on the Evaluation of Explainable Recommendation. http://arxiv.org/abs/2202.06466
- De, A., Ziesemer, C. A., Müller, L., & Silveira, M. S. (n.d.). *LNCS* 8512 Just Rate It! Gamification as Part of Recommendation. <u>http://foursquare.com</u>
- Deepak, V., & Anguraj, D. K. (2023). Provisioning an efficient recommender system to measure the players activities using machine learning approaches. *International Journal of Reliability, Quality, and Safety Engineering/International Journal of Reliability, Quality and Safety Engineering, 30*(04). https://doi.org/10.1142/s021853932350016x
- Dichev, C., & Dicheva, D. (2017). Gamifying education: what is known, what is believed and what remains uncertain: a critical review. *International Journal of*

*Educational Technology in Higher Education, 14*(1). <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s41239-017-0042-5</u>

- Farzan, R., & Brusilovsky, P. (2011). Encouraging user participation in a course recommender system: An impact on user behavior. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 27(1), 276–284. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2010.08.005
- Franklin, N. (2013). The UX book: Process and guidelines for ensuring a quality user experience by Rex Hartson and Pardha A. Pyla, San Diego: Morgan Kaufmann. 2012. Communication Design Quarterly Review, 2(1), 67– 72. https://doi.org/10.1145/2559866.2559873
- Gachkova, M., Somova, E., & Gaftandzhieva, S. (2020). Gamification of courses in the e-learning environment. *IOP Conference Series: Materials Science and Engineering*, 878(1). https://doi.org/10.1088/1757-899X/878/1/012035
- Hamari, J., Koivisto, J., & Sarsa, H. (2014). Does gamification work? A literature review of empirical studies on gamification. *Proceedings of the Annual Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences*, 3025–3034. https://doi.org/10.1109/HICSS.2014.377
- He, X., Liu, Q., & Jung, S. (2024). The Impact of Recommendation System on User Satisfaction: A Moderated Mediation Approach. *Journal of Theoretical and Applied Electronic Commerce Research*, 19(1), 448–466. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/jtaer19010024</u>
- Huang, B., & Hew, K. F. (2021). Using gamification to design courses. *Educational Technology & Society*, 24(1), 44-63.
- Huotari, K., & Hamari, J. (2017). A definition for gamification: anchoring gamification in the service marketing literature. *Electronic Markets*, *27*(1), 21–31. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12525-015-0212-z
- Isinkaye, F. O., Folajimi, Y. O., & Ojokoh, B. A. (2015). Recommendation systems: Principles, methods and evaluation. In *Egyptian Informatics Journal* (Vol. 16, Issue 3, pp. 261–273). Elsevier B.V. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eij.2015.06.005</u>
- Jahan, A., & Edwards, K. L. (2013). Weighting of dependent and target-based criteria for optimal decision-making in materials selection process: Biomedical applications. *Materials in Engineering*, 49, 1000– 1008. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.matdes.2013.02.064</u>
- Jahan, N., Azam, Md. S., Hossain, Md. A., & Kim, M. (2024). An Examination Of Knowledge Sharing In Social Media Based On Social Exchange And Uses And Gratification Theory. *Educational Administration: Theory and Practice*. https://doi.org/10.53555/kuey.v30i5.1356
- Jannach, D. (2023). Evaluating conversational recommender systems: A landscape of research. *Artificial Intelligence Review*, *56*(3), 2365–2400. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10462-022-10229-x

Keršulienė, V., & Turskis, Z. (2012). INTEGRATED FUZZY MULTIPLE CRITERIA DECISION MAKING MODEL FOR ARCHITECT SELECTION / INTEGRUOTAS NERAIŠKUSIS DAUGIATIKSLIS SPRENDIMŲ PRIĖMIMO MODELIS ARCHITEKTUI ATRINKTI. *Technological and Economic Development of Economy*, 17(4), 645– 666. https://doi.org/10.3846/20294913.2011.635718

Copy to clipboard

- Khalil, M., Wong, J., De Koning, B., Ebner, M., & Paas, F. (2018). Gamification in MOOCs: A review of the state of the art. *IEEE Global Engineering Education Conference, EDUCON, 2018-April*, 1629–1638. https://doi.org/10.1109/EDUCON.2018.8363430
- Kim, S. (2014). Decision support model for introduction of gamification solution using ahp. Scientific World Journal, 2014. <u>https://doi.org/10.1155/2014/714239</u>
- Knijnenburg, B. P., Willemsen, M. C., Gantner, Z., Soncu, H., & Newell, C. (2012). Explaining the user experience of recommender systems. User Modeling and User-adapted Interaction, 22(4–5), 441–504. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11257-011-9118-4
- Lerato, M., Esan, O. A., Ebunoluwa, A.-D., Ngwira, S. M., & Zuva, T. (2015). A survey of recommender system feedback techniques, comparison and evaluation metrics. 2015 International Conference on Computing, Communication and Security (ICCCS). https://doi.org/10.1109/cccs.2015.7374146
- Li, C., & Tzeng, G. (2009). Identification of a threshold value for the DEMATEL method using the maximum mean de-entropy algorithm to find critical services provided by a semiconductor intellectual property mall. *Expert Systems With Applications*, *36*(6), 9891–9898. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eswa.2009.01.073
- Loukaidou, M. E. R. O. P. I. (2022). *Towards a gamified recommender system to facilitate cognitive function in children with dementia* (Bachelor's thesis, University of Twente).
- Macias-Escobar, T., Cruz-Reyes, L., Medina-Trejo, C., Gómez-Santillán, C., Rangel-Valdez, N., & Fraire-Huacuja, H. (2021). An interactive recommendation system for decision making based on the characterization of cognitive tasks. *Mathematical and Computational Applications*, 26(2), 35. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/mca26020035</u>
- Magylaitė, K., Kapočius, K., Butleris, R., & Čeponienė, L. (2022). Towards High Usability in gamified Systems: A Systematic review of key concepts and approaches. *Applied Sciences*, 12(16), 8188. https://doi.org/10.3390/app12168188
- Mardani, A., Jusoh, A., Nor, K. M. D., Khalifah, Z., Zakwan, N., & Valipour, A. (2015). Multiple criteria decision-making techniques and their applications - A review of the literature from 2000 to 2014. In *Economic Research-Ekonomska Istrazivanja* (Vol. 28, Issue 1, pp. 516–571). Taylor and Francis Ltd. https://doi.org/10.1080/1331677X.2015.1075139

- Milano, S., Taddeo, M., & Floridi, L. (2020). Recommender systems and their ethical challenges. AI and Society, 35(4), 957–967. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s00146-020-00950-y</u>
- Mora, A., Riera, D., Gonzalez, C., & Arnedo-Moreno, J. (2015). A Literature Review of Gamification Design Frameworks. 2015 7th International Conference on Games and Virtual Worlds for Serious Applications (VS-Games). <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/vs-games.2015.7295760</u>
- Morschheuser, B., Hamari, J., Werder, K., & Abe, J. (2017). How to Gamify? A method for designing gamification. *Proceedings of the . . . Annual Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences/Proceedings of the Annual Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences.* https://doi.org/10.24251/hicss.2017.155
- Nikolakis, N., Siaterlis, G., & Alexopoulos, K. (2020). A machine learning approach for improved shop-floor operator support using a two-level collaborative filtering and gamification features. *Procedia CIRP*, 93, 455–460. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.procir.2020.05.160</u>
- Nuanmeesri, S. (2022). Development of community tourism enhancement in emerging cities using gamification and adaptive tourism recommendation. *Journal of King Saud University Computer and Information Sciences*, *34*(10), 8549–8563. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jksuci.2021.04.007
- Nunes, I., & Jannach, D. (2017). A systematic review and taxonomy of explanations in decision support and recommender systems. User Modeling and User-Adapted Interaction, 27(3–5), 393–444. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11257-017-9195-0
- Nymfodora-Maria Raftopoulou, & Petros L. Pallis. (2023). Gamified Learning Systems' Personalized Feedback Report Dashboards via Custom Machine Learning Algorithms and Recommendation Systems. *Sociology Study*, *13*(3). <u>https://doi.org/10.17265/2159-5526/2023.03.006</u>
- Opricovic, S., & Tzeng, G. (2003). DEFUZZIFICATION WITHIN a MULTICRITERIA DECISION MODEL. International Journal of Uncertainty, Fuzziness and Knowledge-based Systems, 11(05), 635– 652. https://doi.org/10.1142/s0218488503002387
- Park, S., & Kim, S. (2021). Leaderboard design principles to enhance learning and motivation in a gamified educational environment: Development study. *JMIR Serious Games*, 9(2). https://doi.org/10.2196/14746
- Pathak, B., Venkatesan, R., & Yin, F. (2010). Empirical Analysis of the Impact of Recommender Systems on Sales Empirical Analysis of the Impact of Recommender Systems on Sales. *Article in Journal of Management Information Systems*. https://doi.org/10.2307/29780174

- Pawlicka, A., Pawlicki, M., Kozik, R., & Choraś, R. S. (2021). A systematic review of recommender systems and their applications in cybersecurity. In *Sensors* (Vol. 21, Issue 15). MDPI AG. https://doi.org/10.3390/s21155248
- Rodrigues, L., Toda, A. M., Oliveira, W., Palomino, P. T., Vassileva, J., & Isotani, S. (2022). Automating Gamification Personalization to the User and Beyond. *IEEE Transactions on Learning Technologies*, 15(2), 199–212. https://doi.org/10.1109/TLT.2022.3162409
- Roy, D., & Dutta, M. (2022). A systematic review and research perspective on recommender systems. *Journal of Big Data*, 9(1). <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s40537-022-00592-5</u>
- Sahoo, S. K., & Goswami, S. S. (2023). A comprehensive review of multiple Criteria Decision-Making (MCDM) methods: advancements, applications, and future directions. *Decision Making Advances*, 1(1), 25– 48. https://doi.org/10.31181/dma1120237
- Saleem, A. N., Noori, N. M., & Ozdamli, F. (2022). Gamification Applications in Elearning: A Literature Review. *Technology, Knowledge and Learning*, 27(1), 139– 159. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10758-020-09487-x</u>
- Santos, A. C. G., Oliveira, W., Hamari, J., Rodrigues, L., Toda, A. M., Palomino, P. T., & Isotani, S. (2021). The relationship between user types and gamification designs. User Modeling and User-adapted Interaction, 31(5), 907– 940. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11257-021-09300-z
- Schöbel, S. M., Janson, A., & Söllner, M. (2020). Capturing the complexity of gamification elements: a holistic approach for analysing existing and deriving novel gamification designs. *European Journal of Information Systems*, 29(6), 641–668. https://doi.org/10.1080/0960085X.2020.1796531
- Shani, G., & Gunawardana, A. (2011). Evaluating Recommendation Systems. In Recommender Systems Handbook (pp. 257–297). Springer US. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-0-387-85820-3\_8</u>
- Si, S., You, X., Liu, H., & Zhang, P. (2018). DEMATEL Technique: A Systematic review of the State-of-the-Art Literature on Methodologies and applications. *Mathematical Problems in Engineering*, 2018, 1– 33. https://doi.org/10.1155/2018/3696457
- Smiderle, R., Rigo, S. J., Marques, L. B., Peçanha de Miranda Coelho, J. A., & Jaques, P. A. (2020). The impact of gamification on students' learning, engagement and behavior based on their personality traits. *Smart Learning Environments*, 7(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s40561-019-0098-x
- Su, C. H. (2017). Designing and developing a novel hybrid adaptive learning path recommendation system (ALPRS) for gamification mathematics geometry course. *Eurasia Journal of Mathematics, Science and Technology Education*, 13(6), 2275–2298. <u>https://doi.org/10.12973/EURASIA.2017.01225A</u>

- Swacha, J., Queirós, R., & Paiva, J. C. (2023). GATUGU: Six Perspectives of Evaluation of Gamified Systems. *Information*, 14(2), 136. https://doi.org/10.3390/info14020136
- Taqi, A. M., Qadous, M., Salah, M., & Özdamlı, F. (2023). Gamification in Recommendation Systems A Systematic Analysis. In *Communications in computer and information science* (pp. 143–153). <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-031-48858-0\_12</u>
- Taherdoost, H., & Madanchian, M. (2023). Analytic Network Process (ANP) method: A comprehensive review of applications, advantages, and limitations. *Journal of Data Science and Intelligent* Systems. https://doi.org/10.47852/bonviewjdsis3202885
- Thai-Nghe, N., Drumond, L., Horváth, T., Krohn-Grimberghe, A., Nanopoulos, A., & Schmidt-Thieme, L. (2011). Factorization techniques for predicting student performance. In *Educational Recommender Systems and Technologies: Practices* and Challenges (pp. 129–153). IGI Global. https://doi.org/10.4018/978-1-61350-489-5.ch006
- Tondello, G. F., Orji, R., & Nacke, L. E. (2017). Recommender systems for personalized gamification. UMAP 2017 - Adjunct Publication of the 25th Conference on User Modeling, Adaptation and Personalization, 425–430. https://doi.org/10.1145/3099023.3099114
- Toskova, A., & Penchev, G. (2021). Intelligent game recommendation system. *AIP Conference Proceedings*, 2333. <u>https://doi.org/10.1063/5.0042063</u>
- Triantafyllou, S. A., & Georgiadis, C. K. G. (2022). Gamification design patterns for user engagement. *Informatics in Education*, 655– 674. https://doi.org/10.15388/infedu.2022.27
- Tsai, W., & Chou, W. (2009). Selecting management systems for sustainable development in SMEs: A novel hybrid model based on DEMATEL, ANP, and ZOGP. *Expert Systems With Applications*, 36(2), 1444– 1458. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eswa.2007.11.058
- Tseng, M., & Lin, Y. H. (2008). Application of fuzzy DEMATEL to develop a cause and effect model of municipal solid waste management in Metro Manila. *Environmental Monitoring and Assessment*, 158(1–4), 519– 533. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10661-008-0601-2</u>
- Tulchinsky, T. H., & Varavikova, E. A. (2014). Planning and managing health systems. In *Elsevier eBooks* (pp. 613–641). https://doi.org/10.1016/b978-0-12-415766-8.00012-4
- Tzeng, G.-H., & Huang, J.-J. (2011). Multiple Attribute Decision Making. https://doi.org/10.1201/b11032
- Vu Ngoc, T., & Tran Thi, H. (2021). *Techniques, benefits, and challenges of recommendation system in e-commerce: A literature review.* www.grandviewresearch.com

- Wu, W. (2008). Choosing knowledge management strategies by using a combined ANP and DEMATEL approach. *Expert Systems With Applications*, 35(3), 828– 835. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eswa.2007.07.025</u>
- Yannis, G., Kopsacheili, A., Dragomanovits, A., & Petraki, V. (2020). State-of-the-art review on multi-criteria decision-making in the transport sector. *Journal of Traffic* and Transportation Engineering/Journal of Traffic and Transportation Engineering, 7(4), 413–431. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jtte.2020.05.005
- Zhang, Y. (2002). Association for Information Systems AIS Electronic Library (AISeL) RECOMMENDER SYSTEMS: A FRAMEWORK AND RESEARCH ISSUES. AMCIS. http://aisel.aisnet.org/amcis2002
- Zhao, Z., Arya, A., Orji, R., & Chan, G. (2020). Effects of a personalized fitness recommender system using gamification and continuous player modeling: System design and long-term validation study. *JMIR Serious Games*, 8(4). https://doi.org/10.2196/19968

## Appendices

# Appendix A

## **Ethical Committee Approval**

NEAR EAST UNIVERSITY SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH ETHICS COMMITTEE

25.04.2024

Dear Agyeman Murad Taqi Your application titled **"Evaluating the Adoption of Gamified Recommender Systems Using Multi-Criteria Decision Approach"** with the application number NEU/AS/2024/214 has been evaluated by the Scientific Research Ethics Committee and granted approval. You can start your research on the condition that you will abide by the information provided in your application form.

14.5

Prof. Dr. Aşkın KİRAZ

The Coordinator of the Scientific Research Ethics Committee

# Appendix B

# The Turnitin Report

| The         | esis   |   |                                 |
|-------------|--|---|---------------------------------|
| ORIGIN      | NALITY REPORT  |   |                                 |
| 1<br>SIMILA | 5% 13% 1<br>LARITY INDEX INTERNET SOURCES PUR  | 0%  | 8%<br>STUDENT PAPERS            |
| PRIMAR      | NRY SOURCES  |   |                                 |
| 1           | hduhb.nhs.wales  |   | 2%                              |
| 2           | openaccess.ihu.edu.tr  |   | <b>1</b> %                      |
| 3           | dspace.utpl.edu.ec   |   | 1 %                             |
| 4           | kamane.miskas.net  |   | <b>1</b> %                      |
| 5           | Submitted to Aligarh Muslin<br>Aligarh<br>Student Paper  | m University,   | <b>1</b> %                      |
| 6           | Shristi Kharola, Mangey Ran<br>Sachin Kumar Mangla, O.P.<br>Rawat, Yigit Kazancoglu, Du<br>"Barriers to organic waste r<br>circular economy", Journal of<br>Production, 2022 | m, Nupur Goy<br>Nautiyal, Ani<br>urgesh Pant.<br>management<br>of Cleaner | <mark>/al, &lt;1</mark> %<br>ta |
| 7           | repository.iep.bg.ac.rs  |   | <1%                             |

# Appendix C

## **Gamified Recommender System Survey**

# Gamified Recommender Systems Survey

### 1. Gender:

Male (M)□ Female (F)□

2. Field of Study:

CIS MIS Other (Please specify: \_\_\_\_\_)

3. Are you using a recommender system?

Every day  $\Box$  Almost Every day  $\Box$  I rarely use this technology  $\Box$  I have never used it before  $\Box$ 

4. Which recommender systems have you used before? (Check all that apply)

Netflix 
Amazon 
YouTube 
Tinder 
Other (Please specify: \_\_\_\_\_)

#### Instructions:

A gamified recommender system is a platform that utilizes game design elements and mechanics to enhance the recommendation process for users, making it more engaging and enjoyable. Suppose that you are using a gamified recommender system for learning Purposes. 4 different interfaces of gamified learning recommender systems are given in the figures. Please rate(by circling) each design by comparing the following criteria (Effectiveness, Transparency, Persuasiveness, User Satisfaction, Trust, Usefulness, Ease of Use, Efficiency, and Education) with each other using the following rating scale.

#### Scale:

• No influence (NO) Very Low influence (VL) Low influence (L) High influence (H) Very High influence (VH)

# Design 1 Points, Acknowledgments, and Competition (PBL)



| Criteri   | C1:          | C2:             | C3:             | C4: User        | C5:      | C6:      | C7: Ease  | C8:       | C9:       |
|-----------|--------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|----------|----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| a         | Effectivenes | Transparency    | Persuasiveness  | Satisfaction    | Trust    | Useful   | of Use    | Efficienc | Education |
|           | S            |                 |                 |                 |          | ness     |           | у         |           |
| C1        |              | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose   | Choose   | Choose an | Choose an | Choose an |
|           |              |                 |                 |                 | an item. | an item. | item.     | item.     | item.     |
| <b>C2</b> |              |                 | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose   | Choose   | Choose an | Choose an | Choose an |
|           |              |                 |                 |                 | an item. | an item. | item.     | item.     | item.     |
| C3        |              |                 |                 | Choose an item. | Choose   | Choose   | Choose an | Choose an | Choose an |
|           |              |                 |                 |                 | an item. | an item. | item.     | item.     | item.     |
| C4        |              |                 |                 |                 | Choose   | Choose   | Choose an | Choose an | Choose an |
|           |              |                 |                 |                 | an item. | an item. | item.     | item.     | item.     |
| C5        |              |                 |                 |                 |          | Choose   | Choose an | Choose an | Choose an |
|           |              |                 |                 |                 |          | an item. | item.     | item.     | item.     |
| C6        |              |                 |                 |                 |          |          | Choose an | Choose an | Choose an |
| 00        |              |                 |                 |                 |          |          | item.     | item.     | item.     |
| <b>C7</b> |              |                 |                 |                 |          |          |           | Choose an | Choose an |
|           |              |                 |                 |                 |          |          |           | item.     | item.     |
| <b>C8</b> |              |                 |                 |                 |          |          |           |           | Choose an |
|           |              |                 |                 |                 |          |          |           |           | item.     |
| C9        |              |                 |                 |                 |          |          |           |           |           |



## **Design 2** Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Progression (AOP)

| Criteri | C1:          | C2:             | C3:             | C4: User        | C5:                | C6:                | C7: Ease        | C8:             | C9:             |
|---------|--------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| а       | Effectivenes | Transparency    | Persuasiveness  | Satisfaction    | Trust              | Useful             | of Use          | Efficienc       | Education       |
|         | s            |                 |                 |                 |                    | ness               |                 | у               |                 |
| C1      |              | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C2      |              |                 | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C3      |              |                 |                 | Choose an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C4      |              |                 |                 |                 | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C5      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C6      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C7      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    |                 | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C8      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    |                 |                 | Choose an item. |
| С9      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    |                 |                 |                 |



## Design 3 Acknowledgments, Objectives, and Social Pressure (AOS)

| Criteri   | C1:          | C2:             | C3:             | C4: User        | C5:                | C6:                | C7: Ease        | C8:             | C9:             |
|-----------|--------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| а         | Effectivenes | Transparency    | Persuasiveness  | Satisfaction    | Trust              | Useful             | of Use          | Efficienc       | Education       |
|           | S            |                 |                 |                 |                    | ness               |                 | У               |                 |
| C1        |              | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C2        |              |                 | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C3        |              |                 |                 | Choose an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C4        |              |                 |                 |                 | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C5        |              |                 |                 |                 |                    | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C6        |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| <b>C7</b> |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    |                 | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| <b>C8</b> |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    |                 |                 | Choose an item. |
| С9        |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    |                 |                 |                 |



#### Design 4 Acknowledgments, Competition, and Time Pressure (ACT)

| Criteri | C1:          | C2:             | C3:             | C4: User        | C5:                | C6:                | C7: Ease        | C8:             | C9:             |
|---------|--------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| а       | Effectivenes | Transparency    | Persuasiveness  | Satisfaction    | Trust              | Useful             | of Use          | Efficienc       | Education       |
|         | S            |                 |                 |                 |                    | ness               |                 | У               |                 |
| C1      |              | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose             | Choose             | Choose an       | Choose an       | Choose an       |
| C2      |              |                 | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C3      |              |                 |                 | Choose an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C4      |              |                 |                 |                 | Choose an item.    | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C5      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    | Choose<br>an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C6      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    | Choose an item. | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C7      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    |                 | Choose an item. | Choose an item. |
| C8      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    |                 |                 | Choose an item. |
| С9      |              |                 |                 |                 |                    |                    |                 |                 |                 |